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Principal Bankers

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank, Limited

Registered Office

9th Floor, Allied Kajima Building

138 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Tel. @ 28280288

Fax : 2801 4975

E-mail : info@asiasec.com.hk

Share Registrar

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen's Road East
Hong Kong

Company Secretary
Cynthia Chen Si Ying
Auditor

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Solicitors

P. C. Woo & Co.
Hampton, Winter and Glynn

Stock Code

271

Websites
http://www.asiasec.com.hk

http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/asiasecproperties/
index.htm

3



Asiasec Properties Limited Annual Report 2019

ERRE

RARARER—F—

EGE S

NFZBFRE -

rEEBRE-_T-NFT_A=T—HILEFEZ
H&U\;%55944000,%75(_7 —\4F : 58,454,000
S IT) 0 B EF R 42,510,000 T8 4.29%
AN &) R R FE (& 11 258,014,000 T (= F
—/\EF : 112,747,0008 7T) - W=_T—\Fmd
54,733,000 708148.54% ° AFEHFK AL 2 =

(1)  JEAGESE AR F B & FE56,302,000%8
TORA EARFES,967,0008 7T 0 M

Q2 KREMEZAAEBERZHEFE
25,631,000/ 7ok D> = A F £ 9,128,000/
77: o

BRAEMNA467HI(ZZ—/\F : 9.08#(l) -
MR -—ZE—AF+-A=+—8  AREKREE
HEREEEEFEARISTBL(ZE—/\F
3.638TL) °

i B

RBERRR - ARREZRCEMRERE
E-NFt-A=Z+—"RALFEZTHREER
25BMI(RBERBIE) (ZF— NEFh PR (R
BAREBKRE) - 8RI10E) - WHER—_ZT=ZF
MA+RB(EMM)HARIEN TR-_ZF_FF
MA=ZR(EHR)BIARABREMAZ AR
AIRR(TAER D) -

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

| am pleased to present to you the annual results for 2019.

Financial Results

The revenue of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2019 was
HK$55,944,000 (2018: HK$58,454,000), a decrease of HK$2,510,000
or 4.29% when compared to the year before. The profit attributable
to the owners of the Company amounted to HK$58,014,000 (2018:
HK$112,747,000), representing a decrease of HK$54,733,000 or 48.54%
from 2018. The decrease in profit for the year was mainly the results of:

(1) The decrease in share of profit of associates from HK$56,302,000 in
last year to HK$8,967,000 in current year; and

(2) The decrease in fair value gain of investment properties from
HK$25,631,000 in last year to HK$9,128,000 in current year.

Earnings per share amounted to HK4.67 cents (2018: HK9.08 cents), while
the net asset value per share attributable to the owners of the Company
was HK$3.57 as at 31st December, 2019 (2018: HK$3.63).

Dividend

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the board of the directors
of the Company has declared an interim dividend of HK2.5 cents per
share (in lieu of a final dividend) for the year ended 31st December, 2019
(2018 interim dividend (in lieu of a final dividend): HK10 cents per share)
payable on or around Thursday, 16th April, 2020 to the shareholders of
the Company (“Shareholders”) whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Friday, 3rd April, 2020.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (continued)

Closure of Register of Members

L)

2)

For determining the entitlement to the interim dividend (in
lieu of a final dividend)

For determining the entitlement to the interim dividend (in lieu of a
final dividend) for the year ended 3 1st December, 2019, the register
of members of the Company will be closed on Thursday, 2nd April,
2020 and Friday, 3rd April, 2020, during which period no transfer of
shares of the Company will be registered. In order for a Shareholder
to qualify for the interim dividend (in lieu of a final dividend), all
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company's share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited of
Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 1st April, 2020.

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (2020
AGM")

The 2020 AGM is scheduled to be held on Wednesday, 20th May,
2020. For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
2020 AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Friday, 15th May, 2020 to Wednesday, 20th May, 2020 (both
days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order for a Shareholder to be eligible
to attend and vote at the 2020 AGM, all transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's
share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited of Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on Thursday, 14th May, 2020.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)

Management Discussion and Analysis
Business Review

The Group’s core businesses comprise property investment, property
leasing and estate management in Hong Kong.

For the year ended 31st December, 2019, the Group's commercial
properties situated at Harbour Crystal Centre recorded an average
occupancy level of approximately 99% and the performance of rental
income was satisfactory.

In respect of the residential properties held by the associate (33.33%
owned) situated at The Redhill Peninsula, 8 houses were sold during the
year ended 3 1st December, 2019 where 2 houses were completed before
the year end of 31st December, 2019, 4 houses will be completed in
2020 and 2 houses will be completed in 2021. The remaining 33 houses
are being launched for lease and sale in batches in the year of 2020.

The Group's industrial properties situated at Ap Lei Chau, Hong Kong,
the Harbour Industrial Centre and the Oceanic Industrial Centre held by
the associate (33.33% owned) recorded an average occupancy level of
approximately 56% and the rental income was performed moderately.

Financial Review
Group Assets and Charges

The total assets of the Group have decreased from HK$4,714,880,000
last year to HK$4,658,964,000 in this year. The net assets of the Group
have decreased from HK$4,509,150,000 to HK$4,436,589,000. At 31st
December, 2019, no investment properties of the Group in Hong Kong
(2018: HK$ Nil) were pledged as security for banking facilities. The Group
has no bank loan, but will undergo a discussion with the bank for the
renewal of banking facilities and the bank has agreed to provide banking
facilities if necessary.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (continued)

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
Financial Review (continued)
Group Financial Position, Liquidity and Financial Resources

The total liabilities of the Group have increased from HK$205,730,000 as
at 31st December, 2018 to HK$222,375,000 as at 31st December, 2019.
The Group had cash and bank balances of HK$217,031,000 as at 31st
December, 2019 (2018: HK$198,001,000). The ratio of total liabilities
to total assets was approximately 4.77% (2018: 4.36%). As at 31st
December, 2019, the Group had no bank loans (2018: Nil) and the total
equity was HK$4,436,589,000 (2018: HK$4,509,150,000).

As at 31st December, 2019, the current assets of the Group, amounting to
HK$365,512,000 (2018: HK$482,658,000), exceeded its current liabilities
by HK$313,230,000 (2018: HK$447,809,000).

For the year ended 31st December, 2019, the Group had no material
exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates and no related hedges and there
were no contingent liabilities.

Financial/Operational Key Performance Indicators
Key Performance Indicator (“KPI")

For the year of 2019, the Group set the following operational KPIs to
maintain high competitiveness:

(1) For the investment properties managed by the Group, our aim is to
maintain the same as last year in the total rental income.

(2) For the sale of The Redhill Peninsula Project held by the associate
(33.339% owned), our aim is to sell one house quarterly.

Having reviewed the annual performance, these KPIs have been partially
achieved. The Group will keep updating its operational KPIs and sale/
leasing strategy to adapt the market changes.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
Future Likely Development
Objectives for 2020 are as follows:

(1)  We will continue to improve our investment portfolio through
acquisition of quality properties at attractive valuations and disposals
of under-performing properties in order to balance the demands of
short-term returns and long-term capital appreciation.

(2) We will be more proactive in forming the strategy for the sale and
leasing of the remaining houses in The Redhill Peninsula held by the
associate (33.33% owned).

(3) We will review our management system and cost structure so as to
improve efficiency and reduce expenses where possible.

(4) We will consider gearing up our projects in a responsible manner in
order to increase our return on equity.

Business Outlook

The residential property market, particularly in the luxury segment, has
stagnated since the latter part of 2019 due in large part to the ongoing
social unrest. This weaker sentiment has been compounded by an overall
slowdown in the local economy due to the coronavirus outbreak which
started in Wuhan, China. We therefore expect demand for luxury houses in
our joint venture project Redhill Peninsula to remain weak through the first
half of this year, and we will launch additional houses for sale only once
market conditions have shown signs of improving.

We believe the rental market for retail space will remain extremely weak,
as shopkeepers already reeling from the impact of the protests and a
huge drop in mainland Chinese visitors are now also suffering from a huge
drop in customers who are staying at home during this health crisis. This
will negatively affect turnover and future rents at Harbour Crystal Centre
(portion). The Company will continue to work in close consultation with our
tenants, offering short-term concessions where necessary.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
Business Outlook (continued)

Looking ahead, we are hopeful that the coronavirus outbreak will be
contained soon around the world, and that the emergency rate cut in
the US (which we believe will be followed by more rate cuts in US and
elsewhere) will help stabilise business sentiment. We still believe in the
solid long-term economic growth of Hong Kong, and our team will be
looking for attractive opportunities for new acquisitions should the current
crisis result in a substantial drop in capital values.

Appreciation

| would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow Directors and the
staff for their diligence and contributions to the Group in the past year, to
the Shareholders for their understanding and support, and to the customers
for their trust.

Patrick Lee Seng Wei
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18th March, 2020
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FEMESTH PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES
R-E—NEFEf—HA=+—H as at 31st December, 2019
HEEER
(FHR)

Total gross Efr Frid a5t
ek I R SR 1S A& floor area Car parking Percentage
Location Lot No. Use (sq. ft.) spaces owned
rEME

Investment properties

s

Hong Kong

7 &m0 (kD) TEEAIER [EHES 138,663 - 80
BERVDEREIEFHEBI005% 106009k 8,881 - 40

Harbour Crystal Centre (portion) K.LL. 10600 Commercial 30 100

100 Granville Road,
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon

AETE DO (E5) WEIMANMEE  IE &R 266,126 59 33.33
ERBEBF 11657
RS RN
Harbour Industrial Centre (portion)  ALL116 Industrial/Godown
Ap Lei Chau, Aberdeen,
Hong Kong
BETEDO(EMR) BHMALE  I¥ "R 741,706 74 33.33
EEEBT 1165%
RS RN
Oceanic Industrial Centre (portion)  AlLL116 Industrial/Godown
Ap Lei Chau, Aberdeen,
Hong Kong
T/a L (R D) MHER22435%  BEBAE 27,457 - 50
BB ZERER
SRAKBEHR58-645%
Queen’s Centre (portion) I.L.2243R.P. Commercial/Offices

58-64 Queen's Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
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FEPEEFTHEH(E) PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES (continued)
RoFE—fEFEF—H=+—H as at 31st December, 2019
HEREE
(FEAR)

Total gross Hfi FrisE St
ek I R SR 1S A& floor area Car parking Percentage
Location Lot No. Use (sq. ft.) spaces owned
EIBTHERE(EMD) JRYE AU ER S 134,236 10 50

AR- b 2958
BEEE4%R
Wah Shun Industrial Building (portion) Y.T.LL29 Industrial

4 Cho Yuen Street,
Yau Tong, Kowloon

AL BE—HEMD) BRI IR £ 10,427 - 33.33
EENE 1050%%
Redhill Peninsula, Phase 1 (portion) R.B.L.1050 Residential

Tai Tam, Hong Kong

L SEMGEMD) R FREEHER F=E 98,250 - 33.33
BERERE 1050%%
Redhill Peninsula, Phase 2 (portion) R.B.L.1050 Residential

Tai Tam, Hong Kong
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance within a sensible framework with an emphasis on the principles
of transparency, accountability and independence. The board of directors of
the Company (“Board") believes that good corporate governance is essential
to the success of the Company and to the enhancement of shareholders’
value.

Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report

In the light of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (“CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”), the Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices of the
Company with the adoption of the various enhanced procedures which
are detailed in this report. The Company has applied the principles of, and
complied with, the applicable code provisions of the CG Code during the
year ended 31st December, 2019, except for certain deviations as specified
with considered reasons for such deviations as explained below. The Board
will review the current practices at least annually, and make appropriate
changes if considered necessary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Board

The Board currently comprises seven directors (“Directors”) in total, with
four Executive Directors and three Independent Non-Executive Directors
("INEDs"). The composition of the Board during the year and up to the date
of this report is set out as follows:

Executive Directors:

Patrick Lee Seng Wei (Chairman)
Lee Shu Yin (Chief Executive)
Edwin Lo King Yau

Tao Tsan Sang

Li Chak Hung
Choi Kin Man
Lisa Yang Lai Sum

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” section in the Directors’
Report on pages 49 to 51. There are no family or other material
relationships among members of the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Board (continued)
Board Process

During the year, the INEDs provided the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively “Group”) with a wide range of expertise and experience.
Their active participation in the Board and committee meetings brought
independent judgement on issues relating to the Group's strategy,
performance and management process, taking into account the interests of
all shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”).

Throughout the year and up to the date of this report, the Company has
had three INEDs representing not less than one-third of the Board. At
least one of the INEDs has the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise under Rule 3.10
of the Listing Rules. The Board has received from each INED an annual
confirmation of his/her independence and considers that all the INEDs are
independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Group, and to review and
approve the Group's annual and interim results and other ad hoc matters
which need to be dealt with. During the year, four Board meetings were
held and the individual attendance records of each Director at the meetings
of the Board, Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and general
meeting during the year ended 3 1st December, 2019 are set out below:

HEBTERZRY
Number of meetings attended/held
FHZERE FNERE BRAE
EF®  Remuneration Audit General
EEfE Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Meeting
BiTESE: Executive Directors:
FHE(EE) Patrick Lee Seng Wei (Chairman) 4/4 0/1
FHB(TTEER) Lee Shu Yin (Chief Executive) 4/4 0/1
B Edwin Lo King Yau 4/4 1/1
ig< s Tao Tsan Sang 4/4 1/1
BUERTES: INEDs:
FTE Li Chak Hung 4/4 1/1 2/2 1/1
ERER Choi Kin Man 4/4 1/1 2/2 1/1
1B Lisa Yang Lai Sum 4/4 1/1 2/2 11

e —
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Board (continued)
Board Process (continued)

The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration matters covering
mainly the Group's overall strategy, annual operating budget, annual and
interim results, approval of Directors’ appointment or re-appointment
(based on the recommendations made by the Nomination Committee),
material contracts and transactions, corporate governance as well as other
significant policy and financial matters. The Board has delegated the day-
to-day responsibility to the executive management under the instruction/
supervision of the Executive Committee which has its specific written terms
of reference. The respective functions of the Board and management of the
Company have been formalised and set out in writing and will be reviewed
and updated by the Board from time to time to ensure that they are
consistent with the existing rules and regulations.

Regular Board meetings each year are scheduled in advance to facilitate
maximum attendance of Directors. At least 14 days’ notice of a Board
meeting is normally given to all Directors who are given an opportunity to
include matters for discussion in the agenda. The company secretary of
the Company (“Company Secretary”) assists the Chairman of the Board in
preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations are complied with. The agenda and the accompanying Board
papers are normally sent to all Directors at least 3 days before the intended
date of a regular Board meeting (and so far as practicable for such other
Board meetings). Draft minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to
all Directors for their comment before being tabled at the following Board
meeting for approval. All minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and
are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.

According to the current Board practice, if a substantial Shareholder or
a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the
Board which the Board has determined to be material, the matter will be
dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting. The articles
of association of the Company (“Articles of Association”) also stipulate
that save for the exceptions as provided therein, a Director shall abstain
from voting on any Board resolution and not be counted in the quorum at
meetings for approving any contract or arrangement in which such Director

or any of his/her close associates has a material interest.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Board (continued)
Board Process (continued)

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and related
materials and has access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. The Board and each Director also have separate and independent
access to the Company's senior management. Directors will be continuously
updated on the major development of the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of
good corporate governance practices. In addition, a written procedure has
been established since August 2017 to enable the Directors, in discharge
of their duties, to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at a reasonable cost to be borne by the Company.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

For continuous professional development, in addition to Directors’

RABERBE R 2 XF MBI - BELE 2 attendance at meetings and review of papers and circulars sent by the
EEBENT management of the Company, Directors participated in the activities
including the following:
BHRKRSRRRTED
Participation in Continuous
Professional Development Activities
HEREEREARZ
W e R
Attending trainings/
REESEN briefings/seminars/
Reading conference relevant to
EEMRE Name of Directors Regulatory Updates Directors’ duties
BiESR: Executive Directors:
FRIE(EE) Patrick Lee Seng Wei (Chairman) v v
FRIB (7748 ) Lee Shu Yin (Chief Executive) v/ v
BE% Edwin Lo King Yau v/ v
HEE Tao Tsan Sang v v
BIUIERITES : INEDs:
PRI Li Chak Hung v v
2ER Choi Kin Man v/ v
HER Lisa Yang Lai Sum v v
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Board (continued)
Board Diversity

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy in August 2017
which sets out the objectives and principles regarding board diversity for
the purpose of achieving the Company's strategic objectives of balanced
diversity at the Board as far as practicable. Board appointments will be
based on merit and candidates will be considered against measurable
objectives, taking into account the Company's business and needs.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity criteria,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, knowledge, professional experience and skills. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and the contribution that the selected
candidates may bring to the Board.

Roles of Chairman and Chief Executive

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive (“CE") should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei, being the Chairman of the
Board, is primarily responsible for the leadership of the Board, ensuring that
(i) all significant policy issues are discussed by the Board in a timely and
constructive manner; (i) all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising
at Board meetings; and (iii) the Directors receive accurate, timely and clear
information. The functions of the CE are performed by Mr. Lee Shu Yin,
the Chief Executive of the Company, who is responsible for the day-to-
day management of the Group's business. Their responsibilities are clearly
segregated and have been set out in writing and approved by the Board in
August 2017, and subsequently updated in January 2019.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee include the
nomination procedure specifying the process and criteria for the selection
and recommendation of candidates for directorship of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive an induction package from
the Company Secretary on the first occasion of his/her appointment. This
induction package is a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on
the responsibilities and on-going obligations to be observed by a director
pursuant to the Companies Ordinance, Listing Rules and Securities and
Futures Ordinance. In addition, this induction package includes materials
briefly describing the operations and business of the Company, the latest
published financial reports of the Company and the documentation for the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Board. Directors will be
continuously updated on any major developments of the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep
of good corporate governance practices.

All INEDs of the Company were appointed for a specific term, but subject to
the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or any other applicable
laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from their office but eligible
for re-election. The term of appointment of the INEDs has been renewed
for further two years commencing from 1st January, 2019.

According to the Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting
of the Company ("AGM"), one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but
not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. Further, any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the next following general meeting of the Company whilst for
those appointed as an addition to the Board shall hold office until the next
following AGM and in both cases, those Directors shall then be eligible
for re-election at the relevant meeting. Every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties and
has adopted the written terms of reference on its corporate governance
functions in August 2017.

The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate governance functions
include:

(i)  developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and

(v) reviewing the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

In 2019 and up to the date of this report, the Board has performed the
corporate governance duties in accordance with its terms of reference.

Board Committees

The Board has established various committees, including a Nomination
Committee, a Remuneration Committee, an Audit Committee and an
Executive Committee, each of which has its specific written terms of
reference. Copies of minutes of all meetings and resolutions of the
committees, which are kept by the Company Secretary, are circulated to
all Board members and the committees are required to report back to
the Board on their decisions and recommendations where appropriate.
The procedures and arrangements for a Board meeting, as mentioned in
the section headed “The Board” of this report, have been adopted for the
committee meetings so far as practicable.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee has been established since March 2012
and is chaired by an INED and comprises all INEDs. Currently, the
Nomination Committee consists of three members, including Mr. Li Chak
Hung (Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Choi Kin Man and
Ms. Lisa Yang Lai Sum. The Nomination Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice according to the Company’s policy if considered
necessary. The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are
included in its terms of reference, which was revised in August 2017 and
January 2019 and are available on the websites of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) and the Company.

The Nomination Committee has formulated and set out the nomination
policy (“Nomination Policy”) in its terms of reference. The objective of
the Nomination Policy is to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of
the Company’s business. To ensure changes to the Board composition can
be managed without undue disruption, a formal, considered and transparent
procedure is in place for selection, appointment and re-appointment of
Directors, as well as plans in place for orderly succession (if considered
necessary), including periodical review of such plans. The appointment of
a new Director (to be an additional Director or fill a casual vacancy as and
when it arises) or any re-appointment of Directors is a matter for decision
by the Board upon the recommendation of the proposed candidate by the
Nomination Committee.

The criteria to be applied in considering whether a candidate is qualified
shall be his or her ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Company and contribute to the diversity of the Board as well
as the effective carrying out by the Board of the responsibilities. Further
details of the selection criteria and the procedure are set out in the terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee which are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)

The Nomination Committee will meet as and when necessary in
accordance with its terms of reference and may also deal with matters by
way of circulation. In 2019, no Nomination Committee meeting was held
while the Nomination Committee dealt with matters by way of circulation.
In 2019 and up to the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
performed the works as summarised below:

(i)  reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the proposed
resolutions for re-election of the retiring Directors at 2019 AGM and
2020 AGM:; and

(i) reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board
and assessed the independence of each INED.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established since September
2005 and currently consists of three members, including Mr. Choi Kin Man
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Li Chak Hung and Ms.
Lisa Yang Lai Sum, all being the INEDs. The Remuneration Committee is
provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access
to independent professional advice according to the Company's policy if
considered necessary. The major roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are included in its terms of reference, which was revised in
August 2017 and are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are in compliance
with the code provision B.1.2 of the CG Code, but with a deviation
from the code provision that the Remuneration Committee shall make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of the
Executive Directors only and not senior management (as opposed to
executive directors and senior management under the code provision). The
reasons for the above deviation are summarised as below:
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

0)

(ii)

(i)

the Board believes that the Remuneration Committee is not properly
in a position to evaluate the performance of senior management
and that this evaluation process is more effectively carried out by the
Executive Directors;

the Executive Directors must be in a position to supervise and
control senior management and thus must be able to control their
compensation; and

there is no reason for Executive Directors to pay senior management
more than industry standards and thus Shareholders will benefit by
reducing costs in the fixing of such compensation packages.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year in accordance

with its terms of reference. One Remuneration Committee meeting was

held in 2019 and the attendance of each member is set out in the section
headed "The Board” of this report.

In addition to the Remuneration Committee meeting, the Remuneration

Committee also dealt with matters by way of circulation during 2019. In

2019 and up to the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee

performed the works as summarised below:

®

(ii)

(ii)

(v)

reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the existing
policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors;

reviewed the remuneration packages of all the Executive Directors
and INEDs for the year ended 31st December, 2018;

reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the bonus for
the year ended 31st December, 2018 and the increment in salary for
the year 2019 of the CE; and

reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the Directors’
fee for the year 2019.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

Each Director will be entitled to a Director's fee. Further remuneration
payable to Directors (including any service fees of the INEDs) for their
additional responsibilities and services will depend on their respective
contractual terms under their employment contracts or service contracts
as approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 10
to the consolidated financial statements whereas detailed changes in the
emoluments of certain Directors during the interim period and up to the
date of the Interim Report were also disclosed in the Interim Report of the
Company dated 14th August, 2019. Details of the remuneration policy
of the Group are also set out in the "Employee” section contained in the
Directors’ Report on page 56.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established since September 1998 and
currently consists of three INEDs. To retain independence and objectivity,
the Audit Committee is chaired by an INED with appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise. The
current members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Li Chak Hung (Chairman
of the Audit Committee), Mr. Choi Kin Man and Ms. Lisa Yang Lai Sum.
The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
duties and has access to independent professional advice according to the
Company's policy if considered necessary. The major roles and functions
of the Audit Committee are included in its terms of reference, which are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are revised from time to
time to comply with the code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code, but with
deviations from the code provision of the audit committee’s responsibility
to:

(i) implement policy on the engagement of the external auditors to
supply non-audit services;

(i) ensure the management has performed its duty to have effective risk
management and internal control systems; and

(i) ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors, and
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and
has appropriate standing within the listed company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

The Board considers that the Audit Committee shall recommend (as
opposed to implement under the code provision) the policy on the
engagement of the external auditors to supply non-audit services for the
following reasons:

(i) it is proper and appropriate for the Board and its committees to
develop policy and make appropriate recommendations;

(ity  the proper and appropriate mechanism for implementation of such
policy and recommendations is through the Executive Directors and
management; and

(i)  INEDs are not in an effective position to implement policy and follow
up the same on a day-to-day basis.

Further, the Board considers that the Audit Committee only possesses
the effective ability to scrutinise (as opposed to ensure under the code
provision) whether management has performed its duty to have effective
risk management and internal control systems. The Audit Committee is not
equipped to ensure that the same is in place as this would involve day-
to-day supervision and the employment of permanent experts. The Audit
Committee is not in a position either to ensure co-ordination between
the internal and external auditors but it can promote the same. Similarly,
the Audit Committee is not in a position to ensure that the internal audit
function is adequately resourced but it can check whether it is adequately
resourced.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year in accordance with
its terms of reference. Two Audit Committee meetings were held in 2019
and the attendance of each member is set out in the section headed “The
Board" of this report.

In addition to the Audit Committee meetings, the Audit Committee also
dealt with matters by way of circulation during 2019. In 2019 and up
to the date of this report, the Audit Committee performed the works as
summarised below:
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

M

(i)

(ii)

(v)

V)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viil)

reviewed and approved the audit scope and fees proposed by the
external auditor in respect of the interim results review for the six
months ended 30th June, 2019 (“2019 Interim Review") and the
final audit for the year ended 31st December, 2019 (“2019 Final
Audit”) of the Group;

reviewed the audit completion reports from the external auditor and
the management's response in relation to the final audit for the year
ended 31st December, 2018, 2019 Interim Review and 2019 Final
Audit;

reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the financial
reports for the year ended 31st December, 2018, for the six months
ended 30th June, 2019 and for the year ended 31st December,
2019 together with the relevant management representation letters
and announcements;

reviewed the internal audit plan and internal audit review reports
prepared by the Internal Audit Function of the Group (“IA Function”);

reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the updated
reports on substantiation of the resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions, and their training programmes and
budget;

reviewed and recommended for the Board's annual review the
Whistle Blower Policy, Procedures for the Identification and Monitoring
of Connected Transactions, Related Party Transaction Policies and
Procedures, Policy on the Disclosure of Inside Information and Policy
on Risk Management, Compliance and Internal Control Procedures;

reviewed and recommended for the Board's annual review the
Group's risk management and internal control systems; and

reviewed and recommended for the Board's approval the revised
Whistle Blower Policy.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
Executive Committee

The Executive Committee has been established since July 2017 and
currently consists of four Executive Directors, being Messrs. Patrick Lee Seng
Wei (Chairman of the Executive Committee), Lee Shu Yin, Edwin Lo King
Yau and Tao Tsan Sang. The Executive Committee is vested with all the
general powers of management and control of the activities of the Group as
are vested in the Board, save for those matters which are reserved for the
Board's decision and approval pursuant to the written terms of reference of
the Executive Committee.

The Executive Committee will meet as and when necessary to discuss the
operating affairs of the Group and may also deal with matters by way of
circulation. The Executive Committee is mainly responsible for undertaking
and supervising the day-to-day management and is empowered:

(i)  to formulate and implement policies for the business activities,
internal control and administration of the Group; and

(i) to plan and decide on strategies to be adopted for the business
activities of the Group within the overall strategy of the Group as
determined by the Board.

Company Secretary

Ms. Cynthia Chen Si Ying is the Company Secretary of the Company. All
Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary.
The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman on board governance
matters, and is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are followed
and for facilitating communications among Directors as well as with the
Shareholders and management.

Ms. Chen is a fellow member of The Chartered Governance Institute
(formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators) and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
During the year, Ms. Chen undertook over 15 hours of relevant professional
training to update her skills and knowledge.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Codes for Securities Transactions by Directors and Relevant
Employees

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors. All Directors have confirmed, following a specific enquiry by the
Company, that they have complied with the required standard as set out in
the Model Code.

The Company has also adopted the Model Code as the Code for
Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees to regulate dealings in the
securities of the Company by certain employees of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries who are considered to be likely in possession of inside
information in relation to the Company or its securities.

Accountability and Audit
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing, with the
support from the Finance Department, the consolidated financial statements
of the Group. In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31st December, 2019, the accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong have been adopted and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (which also include Hong Kong Accounting
Standards and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance were complied with. The Directors believe
that they have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, and made judgements and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable and have ensured that the consolidated financial statements are
prepared on a going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company's external auditor, Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, are set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on
pages 58 to 65.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Accountability and Audit (continued)
Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board has the responsibility to review annually the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls. In 2019,
the Board, through the Audit Committee, had reviewed the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company's
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions, and their training
programmes and budget.

The Group's risk management and internal control systems are designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss; to manage rather than completely eliminate the risk
of system failure; and to assist in the achievement of the Group's agreed
objectives and goals. They have a key role in the management of risks
that are significant to the fulfilment of business objectives. In addition, they
should provide a basis for the maintenance of proper accounting records
and assist in the compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

Systems and procedures are put in place to identify, evaluate and manage
the risks of different businesses and activities. The annual assessment
is performed through the completion by the relevant business units and
department heads of their respective responsibility statements as co-
ordinated by the IA Function. The result and findings are reported to the
Chairman of Executive Committee who puts forward the same to the
Audit Committee and the Board for review on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems, which have been considered
effective and adequate.

A discussion of the policies and procedures on the management of each of
the major types of risk which the Group is facing is included in note 29(b)
to the consolidated financial statements and under “Principal Risks and
Uncertainties” section contained in Directors’ Report on pages 44 to 45.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Accountability and Audit (continued)
Internal Audit

The Head of IA Function reports to the Chairman of the Board and the
Audit Committee. The IA Function generally carries out the analysis and
independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems.

The internal audit plan and internal audit report were prepared by the 1A
Function and issued to the Audit Committee and the Board for review.

Policy on Disclosure of Inside Information

The Board has adopted the Policy on the Disclosure of Inside Information
("Policy”) effective on 1st January, 2013, and subsequently updated in
August 2017, with respect to the procedures and internal controls for
the handling and dissemination of inside information. The Policy sets out
guidelines and procedures to the Directors and relevant officers of the
Group to ensure inside information of the Group is to be disseminated
to the public on an equal basis and in timely manner. Directors and
relevant officers in possession of potential inside information and/or inside
information are required to take reasonable measures to ensure that proper
safeguards are in place to preserve strict confidentiality of inside information
and to ensure that its recipients recognise their obligations to maintain the
information confidential. The Policy shall be updated and revised as and
when necessary in light of changes in circumstances and changes in the
Listing Rules, Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance and relevant
statutory and regulatory requirements from time to time.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Accountability and Audit (continued)
External Auditor's Remuneration

During the year, the remuneration paid to the Group's external auditor is set
out as follows:

REREE G Z R Services rendered for the Group H;fgg
ZHARTE Audit services 1,273
IZERTS (BIERM P B REEAH) Non-audit services (including review of interim results

and results announcements) 325
FEE Total 1,598
BARR 2 /A8 Communication with Shareholders

EEeRNERRRFRIFBBEZEEN - BH
AEEZEMTDZEEERSBIEAGERRRE
ZE o BRPHEERSESLFR - AMHIEK - Z
STBEXHERRKAMZ ARERFERTER
AT REE o

ARRBRRBFAEGNETCERERRYBEY
BERE IFEBEG2ETRETHRRBEFK
EUAREERRZEMENR - BEZZEE HFHZ
BeLREZEELR  NERFERRERH
BEEZBE R RERE(HMZELBEREE
B AREEEZENRR)NRRBFAS LO
B o EATRILARE ETRAKLZ B
VEEZRBE2IF(IMABZEZLIRE  AIE
D2 BIUERREENE) NG L EEARALE
RER AR BRI E 2 EM MR ST
ARZBERAE » EERR -

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
Shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is disseminated to
Shareholders in a timely manner through a number of formal channels,
which include interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars.
Such published documents together with the latest corporate information
and news are also made available on the website of the Company.

The Company's AGM is a valuable forum for the Board to communicate
directly with Shareholders. The Chairman actively participates at the
AGM and personally chairs the meeting to answer any questions from
Shareholders. The chairmen of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee or in their absence, another
member of the respective committees or failing that their respective duly
appointed delegate, are also available to answer questions at the AGM.
The chairman of any independent board committee formed as necessary
or pursuant to the Listing Rules (or if no such chairman is appointed, at
least a member of the independent board committee) should also be
available to answer questions at any general meeting of Shareholders to
approve a connected transaction or any other transaction that is subject to
independent Shareholders' approval.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Communication with Shareholders (continued)

During the year, the 2019 AGM was held on 22nd May, 2019. The
attendance record of the Directors at the 2019 AGM is set out in the
section headed “The Board"” of this report.

Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei ("Mr. Lee”, the Chairman of the Board), due to
other business engagements, was unable to attend the 2019 AGM resulting
in a deviation from the code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code. Despite his
absence, Mr. Lee had reviewed all the documents and procedures of the
2019 AGM before the meeting, and all records and minutes of the 2019
AGM have been circulated to Mr. Lee after the meeting for information.
Moreover, Mr. Edwin Lo King Yau, the Executive Director of the Company,
who attended and chaired the meeting as Mr. Lee's delegate in the Board,
and all Independent Non-Executive Directors including chairmen of the
audit, remuneration and nomination committees were present thereat and
were available to answer questions to ensure effective communication with
the Shareholders.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings for each
substantial issue, including the re-election of retiring Directors.

The notice to Shareholders is to be sent in the case of AGM at least 20
clear business days before the meeting and to be sent at least 10 clear
business days in case of all other general meetings. An explanation of the
detailed procedures of conducting a poll is provided to the Shareholders
at the commencement of the meeting. The Chairman answers questions
from Shareholders regarding voting by way of a poll. The poll results are
published in the manner prescribed under the requirements of the Listing
Rules.

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all
Shareholders having a right to vote at general meetings as at the date
of deposit of the requisition can request the Directors to convene an
extraordinary general meeting (“EGM") by sending a written request to the
registered office of the Company (“Registered Office”). Such requisition
must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with at the EGM
and must be authenticated by the person or persons making it. Besides,
Shareholders may make a proposal (“Proposal”) at a Shareholders’
meeting by submitting it in written form to the Board at the Registered
Office in accordance with the Companies Ordinance and the Articles
of Association where applicable. The Proposal shall be in the form of a
proposed resolution, which shall clearly and concisely set out the Proposal
for discussion and be relevant to the Company's business scope.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Communication with Shareholders (continued)

The Board updated a shareholders’ communication policy in August
2017. A Shareholder may serve an enquiry to the Board at the Registered
Office for the attention of the Board in written form, which shall state the
nature of the enquiry and the reason for making the enquiry. In addition,
Shareholders can contact Tricor Tengis Limited, the share registrar of the
Company, for any questions about their shareholdings.

Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted the Dividend Policy effective on 1st January,
2019. The Company's Dividend Policy aims at providing reasonable and
sustainable returns to its Shareholders whilst maintaining a position of
financial stability which allows the Company to take advantage of any
investment and expansion opportunities that may arise from time to time.

The Board may declare or propose dividends on an annual basis and/or
may declare interim dividends or special dividends. Proposal or declaration
of dividends by the Board is subject to consideration of the Company’s and
the Group's operating results, accumulated and future earnings, gearing,
liquidity position, capital commitment requirement and future expansion
plan as well as general economic conditions and external factors that may
have impact on the financial performance and position of the Company
and the Group. In addition, as the Company is a holding company, the
Board will also consider the dividends received from its subsidiaries and
associates as the ability to pay dividends by the Company is dependent on
the dividends received from those subsidiaries and associates.

The Board will regularly review the dividend policy and will amend and/or
modify the dividend policy if necessary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Corporate Governance Enhancement

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying
and complying with the CG Code of the Stock Exchange but also about
promoting and developing an ethical and healthy corporate culture. We will
continue to review and, where appropriate, improve our current practices
on the basis of our experience, regulatory changes and developments. Any
views and suggestions from our Shareholders to promote and improve our
transparency are also welcome.

On behalf of the Board

Patrick Lee Seng Wei
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18th March, 2020
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

Approach and Strategy

Asiasec Properties Limited believes in delivering long-term, sustainable value
creation to our shareholders. In doing so, we recognise that the choices
we make will have an impact on the communities in which we carry on
our business and we should ensure such impact is a positive one. We are
committed to contributing to the sustainable development of society and
the environment, and endeavour to embrace these principles as part of our
practice and governance. The Company has adopted a Sustainability Policy
in August 2017 which covers our principles in the area of employment and
labour practices, business integrity, the environment and the community
and we shall endeavour to embrace these principles as part of our practice
and governance to contribute to the sustainable development of society
and the environment.

The board of directors of the Company (“Board”) has overall responsibility
for the Company's strategy and reporting in respect of Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG") issues and has reviewed the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems, which are put in
place to identify, evaluate and manage the risks of different businesses
and activities, including the ESG-related risks. Based upon the assessments
made by the Company's senior management, subsidiaries’ respective
management and the external auditors, the Board considered that such
systems are effective and adequate.

This report outlines the Group's sustainability initiatives and selected Key
Performance Indicators (“KPI") that are material to the Group and its
stakeholders on ESG issues for the year ended 31st December, 2019. This
report supplements information disclosed elsewhere in this annual report,
and was approved by the Board on 18th March, 2020.

Reporting Scope

The subject areas and aspects are presented based on the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (“ESG Guide") as set out in
Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)

Materiality Assessment and Stakeholder Engagement

Amongst various environmental and social issues based on the ESG
Guide within the scope of sustainability, below are the list of issues that
are considered to be material and relevant to the Group. The priorities
are set based on management'’s view as well as certain conclusions from
stakeholders’ engagement. We regularly engage key stakeholders in daily
operations through meetings, events, and other communications and
feedback channels. Based on management's view, the aspects and KPls
relevant for this report’s disclosure are set out as follows:

Material and relevant issue
Anti-corruption (Aspect B7) general disclosure, KPI B7.2
Other relevant issues

Emissions (Aspect A1) general disclosure
Use of resources (Aspect A2) general disclosure, KPI A2.1, A2.3

The environment and natural resources (Aspect A3) general disclosure, KP!
A3.1

Employment (Aspect B1) general disclosure, KPI B1.1

Health and safety (Aspect B2) general disclosure, KPI B2.3

Development and training (Aspect B3) general disclosure, B3.2
Labour standards (Aspect B4) general disclosure

Supply chain management (Aspect B5) general disclosure

Product responsibility (Aspect B6) general disclosure, KPI B6.2, B6.4

Community investment (Aspect B8) general disclosure

All other aspects of KPI not mentioned above were concluded to be not
relevant for disclosure.

The following ESG issues are presented based on the classification of
provisions by the Stock Exchange’s ESG Guide.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)

A.  Environmental Issues

The Group's Sustainability Policy encompasses our general approach
towards environmental issues. We endeavour to:

—  observe relevant laws and regulations and aim to go beyond
minimum requirements;

—  prevent/minimise air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste;

- make efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other
raw materials;

—  minimise the impact of the Group’s activities on the environment and
natural resources; and

—  engage our staff, customers and partners to promote environmentally
sustainable business practices and constantly re-assess our processes
to minimise environmental impact.

This report does not include the disclosure of all the environmental KPIs
as they are not considered material or relevant as a conclusion of our
stakeholders’ engagement as well as management's view. Instead, we
have discussed our general approach and effort to reduce the Group's
environmental footprint in various aspects.

Emissions (Aspect A1)

The Group is not involved in any manufacturing activities and direct
participating in construction works. Emissions produced are mostly on a
“second degree” basis as incurred during occasional business travels which
is infrequent. In line with our policy to minimise air and greenhouse gas
emissions, major operations are equipped with video conferencing facilities
to minimise the need for face to face meetings and keep business travelling
to @ minimum. There are no relevant laws and regulations applicable to our
business in this aspect.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)

A.  Environmental Issues (continued)

Use of Resources (Aspect A2) and
The Environment and Natural Resources (Aspect A3)

We have adopted a series of internal control policies and procedures to
enhance the efficiency in consumption of resources including energy,
water and other paper. With only 30 staff across the Group, we consume
minimum amounts of electricity and paper and with the efficient use of
such, we hope to minimise our impact on the environment while we grow
our businesses. Water consumption is not material to our business as it
relates mainly to the personal consumption of our staff or for their personal
hygiene.

Environmental protection guidelines for energy savings and reduction in
paper consumption are circulated to all staff at head office and branches.
For instance, staff are reminded to switch off lights and equipment after
work, during lunch break or during the time working outside the office and
wherever possible. Energy efficient office equipment is always preferred
in making purchase decisions. During 2019, the Group's total electricity
consumption was 21,960 kwh, a 20% reduction as compared with 27,300
kwh in 2018.

Since March 2017, electronic board paper systems have been promoted
and implemented throughout the Group, allowing Directors to access
meeting papers online anytime, anywhere with the use of portable
electronic devices, improving Board efficiency whilst saving papers.

For our major activities of property investment and property management
businesses, eco-friendly options are often considered and where possible/
appropriate are implemented in operations and maintenance works.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)
A.  Environmental Issues (continued)

Use of Resources (Aspect A2) and
The Environment and Natural Resources (Aspect A3) (continued)

These include:

—  to replace compact fluorescent lamps with LED lightings;

—  to replace traditional electrical lift systems with WWF system;

- to use environmentally friendly refrigerant gases for air-conditioning
units selection;

—  to place recycling bins in the prominent place to encourage waste
separation awareness amongst our customers;

- to carry out routine maintenance of lighting, air-conditioning and
water pipe systems to prevent the lost of natural resources;

- to replace air-cool with water-cool air-conditioning system;

- to use more economical and efficient method to reduce noise, dust
and debris for waterproofing repair and maintenance; and

—  to install water efficient taps in washrooms and promoting concepts
of water conservation to our customers.

Except for the abovementioned, the Group's business has no direct impact
on the environment and natural resources.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)

B. Social Issues

Employment, Health and Safety and Labour Standards
(Aspects B1, B2, B4)

The Company is substantially an investment holding company and with
subsidiaries involved in real estate, property leasing and management
services. Our people are our most important assets that drive the long-term
development and sustainability of the Company. The Group's policy on
employment is as follows:

—  observing relevant laws and regulations;

—  being an equal-opportunity employer, implementing fair practices
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-

discrimination, and other benefits and welfare for our staff;

- providing a safe, healthy and quality workplace and protecting
employees from occupational hazards;

- promoting a good work-life balance for staff;
—  investing in training and professional development of our staff for the
purpose of improving their knowledge and skills for discharging duties

at work;

-  maintaining an open dialogue with our staff, facilitating a transparent
two-way communication; and

- no child and forced labour.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)

B. Social Issues (continued)

Employment, Health and Safety and Labour Standards
(Aspects B1, B2, B4) (continued)

The Group’s employment of staff is subject to the Employment Ordinance,
the Minimum Wage Ordinance, as well as the Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance. The Group has no known non-compliance with the above
relevant regulations.

Our compensation and benefits (including working hours, rest periods,
welfare) need to be competitive with other peers in the same sectors and
in general exceeds the minimum as required by the relevant regulations.
Owing to the nature of our businesses, work related injuries, occupational
health issues and the incurrence of child labour are not significant risk
factors.

The Group endeavours to provide a safe and pleasant working environment
for our staff. On top of this, well-being programmes such as those
promoting a good work-life balance are regularly offered to staff. Sudden
Cardiac Arrest is a leading cause of death, so in July 2019 the Group
organized the Press to shock — Save a life Public Access Defibrillation (PAD)
Training Course to our staff. By equipping our staff with knowledge and
skill to use the automatic external defibrillators (AEDs) which are placed
in buildings and public areas, we can save lives and improve the chain-of-
survival in our workplace or community.

As at 31st December, 2019, the Group employs a total of 30 (2018: 31)
staff in Hong Kong.




TERBEFRAT —Z—NEFHR 4]

“HEREABRE(E) ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)
B. HE®:B () B. Social Issues (continued)
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BE HEREAREE) ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)

B. He&&Ewm B. Social Issues (continued)

BRRIEN(EBEB3) Development and Training (Aspect B3)

AEBBMANEARINBERFEZET 2L B  The Group is committed to fostering a culture of continuous leamning in
BEETHEIERBOHEE 2 EeRIfE  our organisation. Our employees are encouraged to pursue work-related
0 BRI 2 Fike o TR E T LR T advanced studies and attend seminars and workshops to hone their
ET2HEIEHREE - R-ZT—h&F - K"&EE  skills. We support our people by providing study subsidies to facilitate the
BB THIABHA £99(=ZF— )\ : 80.5)/s  professional development of our employees. During 2019, staff training

B o across the Group amounted to 99 (2018: 80.5) hours in total.
BEHIEF8 9 Training hours breakdown
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)

B. Social Issues (continued)
Supply Chain Management (Aspect B5)

The Group's general business suppliers include providers of information
technology and communication, premises, legal and other business services
as well as vendors for office supplies. These are not considered to pose
significant social risks for our business and procurement decisions are
based on pricing, suitability as well as the general reputation of suppliers.

Product Responsibility (Aspect B6)

The Group is responsible for providing a quality, safe and healthy living and
working environment to the tenants and visitors of its leased properties. We
listen for our tenants’ feedback and make continuous progress to improve
our service quality. Daily site inspections are conducted and frequent
communications with our tenants are maintained with an aim to uphold
a high standard of service quality. During 2019, the complaint rate is low
and most of the complainants accepted or were satisfied with our replies.
The Group puts the best effort to response instantly to the problem and
complaint submitted by the tenant.

Anti-corruption (Aspect B7)

As the Group has zero-tolerance on any forms of bribery, corruption and
fraud, it has established a Whistle Blower Policy (“the Policy”) detailing
situations in which acceptance of advantages is allowed. Key principles
concerning prevention of bribery and channel for reporting suspected
cases are set out in the Policy. Employees are required to undertake their
adherence thereto. Besides, internal control activities are in place to detect
malpractices. Upon receipt of any reported issues, the management will
conduct investigation and handle them in the manner set out in the Policy.
During 2019, there were no known cases of non-compliance with the
above laws and regulations.

Community Investment (Aspect B8)

We strive to excel for our customers and undertake the responsibility of a
good corporate citizen contributing to the community by encouraging our
staff to enroll in charity and social services.

In Hong Kong, we organized three staff events — Walk for Millions in January
2019, Skip-a-meal in June 2019 and Mooncakes for Charity in September
2019. Funds raised from the events have supported World Vision to
provide food, health care and nutrition and livelihood assistance to children
and families affected by conflicts in Somalia, South Sudan and Zimbabwe
and the member social welfare agencies supported by The Community
Chest of Hong Kong.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The board of directors of the Company (“Board”) presents its annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively “Group”) for the year ended 31st December,
2019.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities and details of its principal subsidiaries and associates as at 31st
December, 2019 are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group's revenue for the year was derived mainly from activities carried
out in Hong Kong. The breakdown by principal activities of the Group's
revenue and the contribution to profit before taxation for the year ended
31st December, 2019 is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Business Review

Detailed review of the Group’s business is set out in the Chairman’s
Statement (“CS") on page 6. Future development of the Company’s
business is set out in the CS on page 8. An analysis of the Group’s
performance during the year using financial key performance indicators is
provided in the CS on page 7.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group adopts a comprehensive risk management framework. Risk
management policies and procedures are regularly reviewed and updated
to react to changes in market conditions and the Group's business strategy.
The audit committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”) reviews risk-
related policies and scrutinises that management has performed its duty
to have effective risk management and internal control systems necessary
for monitoring and controlling major risks arising from the Group's business
activities, changing external risks and the regulatory environment, and
reports to the Board on the above.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Business Review (continued)
Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)
Financial Risk

Financial risk includes market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Market risk
concerns that the value of an investment will change due to movements
in market factors and which can be further divided into interest rate
risk, foreign currency risk and other price risk. Credit risk is the risk of
losses arising from clients or counterparties failing to make payments as
contracted. Liquidity risk concerns that a given security or asset cannot be
traded readily in the market to prevent a loss or make the required profit.
Further discussion on financial risk management is outlined in note 29(b)
“Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies” to the consolidated
financial statements.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is concerned with possible losses caused by inadequate or
failed internal processes, people, systems or external events. Operational
risk is mitigated and controlled through establishing robust internal controls,
setting out clear lines of responsibility, proper segregation of duties and
effective internal reporting and contingency planning. It is our corporate
culture that the business and operating line management are fully aware of,
and responsible for, managing the operational risks of their business units
on a day-to-day basis. Independent monitoring and reviews are conducted
by the Internal Audit Function of the Group which reports regularly to the
Chairman of the Board and the Audit Committee.

Uncertainties

The Group's business and profitability growth in the year under review are
affected by the uncertainty of the property market. The supply and demand
of the properties, government interventions over the property market price,
house price indexes and interest rates change in Hong Kong may induce a

material adjustment on the Group's business, financial position and results.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Business Review (continued)
Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of the environment
and communities in which it operates. Acting in an environmentally
responsible manner, the Group endeavours to comply with the laws and
regulations regarding environmental protection legislated by the local
government for managing the properties.

The Group is also committed to building an eco-friendly corporation. It is the
Group's aim to reduce the impacts of its operations on the environment.
The environmental policies of the Group include minimising consumption
of paper and electricity, reducing waste and promoting the use of electronic
communication and storage.

Further information on the Group's environmental issues also detailed in
the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 34 to 43.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has complied
in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Group. During
the year, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss on page 66 and in the accompanying notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Board has declared an
interim dividend of HK2.5 cents per share (in lieu of a final dividend) for
the year ended 31st December, 2019 (2018 interim dividend (in lieu of
a final dividend): HK10 cents per share) payable on or around Thursday,
16th April, 2020 to the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”)
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Friday, 3rd April, 2020. Details are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Debentures
The Group has not issued any debentures during the year.
Equity-Linked Agreements

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the
Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

Borrowings

The Group does not have any borrowings apart from the amounts due to
associates which is interest free and the details of which are set out in note
27 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31st December, 2019,
calculated under part 6 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622), amounted to HK$92,776,000 (2018: HK$157,706,000).

Properties

Particulars of major properties of the Group as at 31st December, 2019 are
set out on pages 10to 11.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Directors

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Patrick Lee Seng Wei
Lee Shu Yin

Edwin Lo King Yau
Tao Tsan Sang

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Li Chak Hung
Choi Kin Man
Lisa Yang Lai Sum

In accordance with Article 105(A) of the articles of association of the
Company (“Articles of Association”), Messrs. Patrick Lee Seng Wei, Edwin Lo
King Yau and Tao Tsan Sang shall retire from office by rotation and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

A list of names of all the directors who have served on the boards of the
Company's subsidiaries during the year are available on the website of the
Company under the “Corporate Governance” section.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
Executive Directors

Patrick Lee Seng Wei, aged 68, was appointed an Executive Director
of the Company in November 2016 and was the Chief Executive of the
Company during the period from December 2016 to January 2018.
Mr. Lee was appointed the Chairman of the Company in January 2018.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Being an
architect, he worked for IBM Australia before becoming involved in property
development in Malaysia and Hong Kong more than thirty years ago. He
has extensive experience in the property field. Mr. Lee is the managing
director and an executive director of Tian An China Investments Company
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Lee Shu Yin, aged 53, has been the Chief Executive and an Executive
Director of the Company since January 2018. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. He has over twenty years of experience in
corporate finance, investment and management. Mr. Lee served as Chief
Investment Officer of Grand River Properties Ltd. and as an executive of
PGR Asian RE Fund GP, Ltd., which managed a property-related investment
account of a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tian An China Investments
Company Limited (“TACI"), a substantial shareholder of the Company.
He is an Independent Non-Executive Director of Altus Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Stock Code: 8149). Mr. Lee was a Non-Executive Director of TACI during
the period from March 2011 to June 2017 and an Executive Director of
the same company from June 2017 to January 2018. He served various
positions as a vice president and director in the Asian Equities division of JP
Morgan Securities Limited/Robert Fleming Securities and as an executive
director of Goldman Sachs International in Hong Kong. He holds a Master's
Degree in Finance from the London Business School, and Bachelor of Arts
and Bachelor of Science Degrees from Stanford University. Mr. Lee is a

Chartered Financial Analyst charterholder.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
(continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Edwin Lo King Yau, aged 59, was appointed an Executive Director of the
Company in November 2016. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Lo holds a Master's Degree in Applied Finance from
Macquarie University, Australia and is a Chartered Secretary and a Chartered
Governance Professional. He had served various executive roles in several
companies in Hong Kong including as company secretary for public listed
companies. Mr. Lo is also an executive director of each of Allied Group
Limited and Tian An China Investments Company Limited, the substantial
shareholders of the Company.

Tao Tsan Sang, aged 55, was appointed an Executive Director of the
Company in November 2016. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Tao holds a Master's Degree in Business Administration
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is an associate of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants. He has extensive experience in accounting,
financial management and China business field. Mr. Tao is an executive
director and the finance director of Tian An China Investments Company
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Li Chak Hung, aged 55, was appointed an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in March 2017. Mr. Li graduated from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong and holds a Bachelor's Degree of
Business Administration. Mr. Li is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising)
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of
The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He has over 25 years' experience in
accounting, auditing, taxation and financial management. Mr. Li is currently
an independent non-executive director of Summit Ascent Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 102), Sandmartin International Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
482) and Alpha Professional Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 948) and was
an independent non-executive director of DreamEast Group Limited (Stock
Code: 593) from October 2004 to December 2019 and Alibaba Pictures
Group Limited (Stock Code: 1060) from September 2004 to June 2014,
whereas all companies are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
(continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (continued)

Choi Kin Man, aged 60, was appointed an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in March 2017. Mr. Choi graduated from Jinan
University holding a Bachelor's degree in Journalism and from University of
South Australia with a Master's degree in business administration. Mr. Choi
has over 15 years of experience in the media and public relations industry,
and is currently the managing director of Shima & Co. Limited. Mr. Choi was
previously a director of Capital Communications Corp., and had participated
in a number of public relations and communications projects.

Lisa Yang Lai Sum, aged 53, was appointed an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company in March 2017. She graduated from the
University of Sydney with a Bachelor's Degree in Law and Economics and
is also qualified as a solicitor in Australia and England. She is a practising
solicitor in Hong Kong and a consultant of ONC Lawyers. Ms. Yang is also
an independent non-executive director of each of Allied Group Limited and
Tian An China Investments Company Limited, the substantial shareholders
of the Company, and China Medical & HealthCare Group Limited.

Senior Management

Cynthia Chen Si Ying, aged 53, is the Company Secretary of the
Company. She joined the Company in April 2011. Ms. Chen holds a
Bachelor's Degree in Business Administration and a Master's Degree
in Corporate Governance. She is a fellow of The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and a fellow of The Chartered Governance
Institute (formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators). She has more than eighteen years' extensive experience in
the company secretarial practice and has over twenty-five years’ experience
in the management of large and well-known enterprises, and she has

worked in Singapore for more than three years.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company ("AGM") has an unexpired service
contract with the Group which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Terms of Office for the Independent Non-Executive
Directors

All the Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs") were appointed
for a specific term of two years which shall continue until 31st December,
2020 but subject to the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or
any other applicable laws whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from
their office.

Directors’ Interests

As at 31st December, 2019, none of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations,
within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO"), as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules").
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

During the year and up to the date of this report, the following Directors (not
being the INEDs) are considered to have interests in the businesses listed
below which compete or are likely to compete with the businesses of the
Group pursuant to the Listing Rules as set out below:

1. Messrs. Patrick Lee Seng Wei, Edwin Lo King Yau and Tao Tsan Sang
are directors of TACI which, through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly
engaged in the businesses of money lending, property investment
and property management; and

2. Mr. Edwin Lo King Yau is a director of Allied Group Limited which,
through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly engaged in the businesses
of money lending, property investment and property management.

Although the above-mentioned Directors have competing interests in other
companies by virtue of their respective common directorship, they will fuffil
their fiduciary duties in order to ensure that they will act in the best interests
of the Shareholders and the Company as a whole at all times. Hence, the
Group is capable of carrying on its businesses independently of, and at
arm'’s length from, the businesses of such companies.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which the Directors
or an entity connected with the Directors had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, its
fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors or Chief Executives (including their spouses and
children under the age of 18) of the Company had any interests in or
was granted any right to subscribe in any shares, underlying shares, or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation.

Management Contracts

Save for employment contracts and agreements relating to the sharing
of administrative services and management services and the sharing of
internal audit services and management information system services, no
other contracts, relating to the management and/or administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered
into or subsisted during the year.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Articles of Association provides that every Director or other officer
of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise
in relation thereto. In addition, the Company has maintained appropriate
directors and officers liability insurance in respect of relevant legal actions
against the Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests

To the best of Directors’ knowledge, as at 31st December, 2019, the
following Shareholders had interests in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section

g 336 of the SFO:
BERRINRERRIGZHE
Number of shares and underlying shares interested
BAER EEER LERE BT
(LESES (&M BRipEsZ
ASBER) Zigs) @;hastt
Personal Corporate Approximate
Interests Interests % of the
(held as (interest of Hiiga #2435 relevant total
BREE beneficial controlled Other Total number of
Name of Shareholders owner) corporation) Interests Interests issued shares
REHPEREFRAR(TREZ]) - 930,376,898 - 930,376,898 74.96%
Tian An China Investments Company Limited (Brat1) (Btst2)

("TACI") (Note 1) (Note 2)
BAWE(ER)BRAR(HAE]) - 930,376,898 - 930,376,898 74.96%
Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited (“APL") (K17#3) (K15#2)

(Note 3) (Note 2)
BesEBBRAR([HMARE]) - 930,376,898 - 930,376,898 74.96%
Allied Group Limited (“AGL") (Hiit4) (Hizt2)

(Note 4) (Note 2)
Lee and Lee Trust - 930,376,898 - 930,376,898 74.96%

(B15t5) (Hfat2)

(Note 5) (Note 2)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests
(continued)

Notes:

1. The interest was held by Autobest Holdings Limited (“Autobest”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Advance Growth Investments Limited (“Advance Growth"). As
Advance Growth is a wholly-owned subsidiary of TACI, TACI was therefore deemed
to have an interest in the shares in which Autobest was interested.

2. The figure refers to the same interests of TACI in 930,376,898 shares.

3. APL owned approximately 48.86% of the total number of issued shares of TACI
and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares in which TACI was
interested.

4. AGL owned approximately 74.99% of the total number of issued shares of APL
and was therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares in which APL was
interested.

5. Mr. Lee Seng Hui, Ms. Lee Su Hwei and Mr. Lee Seng Huang are the trustees of
Lee and Lee Trust, being a discretionary trust. The Lee and Lee Trust controlled
approximately 74.95% of the total number of issued shares of AGL (inclusive
of Mr. Lee Seng Hui's personal interests) and was therefore deemed to have an
interest in the shares in which AGL was interested.

6. All interests stated above as at 31st December, 2019 represent long positions as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

Employees

As at 31st December, 2019, the Group, excluding associated companies,
employed 30 (2018: 31) persons, all (2018: all) were employed in Hong
Kong. The Group maintains a policy of paying competitive remuneration
packages and employees are also rewarded on performance related basis
including salary and bonus. Details of the remuneration policy of the
Directors are set out in the “Remuneration Committee” section contained in
the Corporate Governance Report on page 23.

In addition to basic salaries, employees in Hong Kong are provided with
medical insurance and some of them are included under a defined
contribution provident fund scheme and mandatory provident fund scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the aggregate revenue attributable to the Group's largest
and the five largest customers were approximately 11% and 49% of the
Group's revenue respectively, and the aggregate purchases attributable to
the Group's largest and the five largest suppliers were approximately 78%
and 99% of the Group's purchases respectively.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders, which to
the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the Company's
total number of issued shares, had a beneficial interest in any of the
Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

During the year ended 31st December, 2019, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company's shares.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 12 to 33.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float as required under the
Listing Rules.

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the AGM to re-appoint Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Patrick Lee Seng Wei
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18th March, 2020

57



58

Asiasec Properties Limited Annual Report 2019

3L R BB 3R

Deloitte

B EEMERRATSRE
(REBAMAK L BRA A])

R

et

BB ERAVEHNFEOEEF 167 BN EHE
ERAR(ERAREMBRAR(HEIE%
B ZHRENB®RE SGEAVEREPE=ZZ
—NEFEF+ZA=+—HZEAUBKRRE UK
HEZALFEZEAERE BEkEME2E
WK REEREHRMEARSREER - U
MRS RENT  BEXTESHBERRBE -

BARE  ZESHRAVWBHmROREAFTES
Mg ([BESFMAED)EMZBEBHBR
SEA([BAMHREER D EEMP BRI
T BERER-_ZE-NAFET_A=1t—BZ&KAE
MEARENBEZALFEZEAMBRR R
RERENE  WEHREBEREDIZERE -

B RHER

HMEREEZE S AGRMOFTBET L]
(THEBEED ) ETER - HMPEZXFEANT
AENRTEEARSZBERE RS MHR
FAENEE D PIEE— ML - REBZES
SR AEEMAER SR BETRI(T PR
BB BERE - YEETTAPEMER
BREML - RAEE - RAMESHETRERE
TR MEE AR FINE BRI HER -

B E R EIA

BREZFEERBERMANFEHE - BAYEAR
PSR BHREANEITR/ERNER - 5LF
HRAERMEFTBEBFAMBBERRLAZRR
EITREN - RATEHELFTREHEBNE
oo

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

=ED

TO THE MEMBERS OF ASIASEC PROPERTIES LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Asiasec Properties
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"Group”) set out on pages 66 to 167, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31st December, 2019, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31st
December, 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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Key audit matter
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Valuation of investment properties

BB EYREERESBREZTR AN REMEMLE
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We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined with
the significant judgments associated with determining the fair
value.

BUAR AV ISREM T 15T - SE@MZEEMERMLR
PEREEZER  EF  IEREES RZT-NEF+=
B=+—H:HEA1,383,647,0008 7T - REE_-_ZT—NF
+ZA=+—ALLFE BREREMEZALEBEEFHA
9,128,000/ 8 TLE MR & B KR NTER ©

As disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s investment properties which
represent commercial, residential, industrial properties and
carparks located in the People’s Republic of China and Hong
Kong carried at HK$1,383,647,000 as at 31st December,
2019. During the year ended 31st December, 2019, a
change in fair value of the Group's investment properties of
HK$9,128,000 was recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

BEEBZMARENEDZEB YA EREETMAD([FHE
Bb )T 2 RER AR BEETE o SERERS REEE
ZETEZRXNEIZHARE  SEEAHKES  ERKa
EREREL TS EMES -

All of the Group's investment properties are measured at
fair value with reference to the valuation performed by an
independent and qualified professional valuer (the “Valuer").
The valuation depends on certain significant assumptions and
key inputs that involve management's judgments, including
term vyield, revisionary yield and market unit rent.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

BMRERTEERRERERZHE
How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAERFHEREMER 2 AEZ R F B -

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

© FHAERHEEZBED - ENREFEIE

. Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the Valuer;

« ERFEEZHEBRRSE  METHZRR - HE
Pk ER2MR - MEMAZBARAGRHI LT 2
AR

. Understanding the Valuer's valuation process and
methodology, the performance of the property markets,
significant assumptions adopted, critical judgmental
areas and key inputs used in the valuation;

. HETTERBZ DERBRRZAEN + Rk

. Evaluating the reasonableness of the methodology and
assumptions to industry norms; and

© RERMAEVETESNNE  ZEHREEFEEM
S8 - fHEEIRE RS RAZ ERH AR
BRI -

. Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs
adopted by management and the Valuer by comparing
them, on a sample basis, to entity-specific information
and market data based on our knowledge of the
property markets.
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AR EZEE )

HEFXER
Key audit matter

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

BIRERTEERRBERERZSE
How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FAREARSARM2ARRIFAARERECEFTR(ZARt2ARRKRARREREZRFTIR])
Valuation of investment in equity instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income (“equity

instrument at FVTOCI")

B ERE MR REIR AR EBEREZRATAETE R
REZFE  ANEEREFEAAABER SR ERHAL -

We identified the valuation of equity instrument at FVTOCI as
a key audit matter due to the significant judgments associated
with determining the fair value.

EEERFE MEENEMEREZIELTAT A ZHRK
B HEARBEMEARSIZAABEREZRATA -
BINGFAMISHRENE18FIEE  EEEZAHEESRE
EHEFTRERAZELAN -_SE-AEFE+_A=+—HiAE
438,705,000 7L c REZ-FT—NLF+-_A=+—HLF
B EREMEERERAABERERATAZHRETA
Hih 2 mEU2ERA1,041,0008 7T °

The Group held 5% equity interest in an unlisted company
which is principally engaged in property investment and is
classified as equity instrument at FVTOCI. As disclosed in
note 18 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group's
equity instrument at FVTOCI which are measured at fair
value carried at HK$38,705,000 as at 3 1st December, 2019.
During the year ended 31st December, 2019, a change in
fair value of equity instrument at FVTOCI of HK$1,041,000
was recognised in other comprehensive income.

BEEEzEBEMEAKSERARBEREZRATATZ
ZHEENETZ MERAABEERE - HEDE  HEMBZ
EZRBLIBHABIB ZFHBENGEEMBERERME29(0H
o MERERSINERBHH cETEERREIERAR
i BREARKER  ERKEE  TSEMES RRZ
MM GEF K -

The fair value of the Group's equity instrument at FVTOCI
is determined with reference to the valuation performed by
the Valuer. Details of the valuation techniques, significant
assumptions and key inputs used in the valuation are
disclosed in note 29(c) to the consolidated financial
statements. The valuation depends on certain significant
assumptions and key inputs that involve management'’s
judgments, including term yield, revisionary yield, market unit
rent and discount for lack of control and lack of marketability.

BAARFHEEBE M
HEZEFERE:

B AN BEEEZBEATAZ

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the valuation of
equity instrument at FVTOC! included:

© AHARHEEDZBSED - RN REFEIL

. Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the Valuer;

« BESMERZEEBRERIE  METBZRR - HE
PRz E2ER - MEMAZBARAGRA LT 2
ABIE

. Understanding the Valuer's valuation process and
methodology, the performance of the property markets,
significant assumptions adopted, critical judgmental
areas and key inputs used in the valuation;

© EBRMABELER 2B SRR 2 ER
RS BEAR 2 RATAITERRY 7k RER
R R

. Evaluating the appropriateness of the methodology in
the valuation of equity instrument at FVTOCI with the
assistance of our internal valuation specialist; and

c EBUBERBEEMLTSEE  FEERE M
PR 2 T RRFLBARBZ S EEREMAEE
FERHEEN B BN PR AR BN M R BR = FE R RN T 35 5 5 2 4T

nE -

. Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions
and inputs adopted by management and the Valuer
by comparing them to entity-specific information and
market data and with the assistance of our internal
valuation specialist on liquidity and discount for lack of
control and lack of marketability.
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RAREZER

Key audit matter
FERBEATZHES

Valuation of interests in associates

HIHE QAR 2 T RREREREER i EREK
BRAEZERTE BREEZGAUBHRERAL -—E246E - U
FREERSEEREENRBE QR ZMEAREERL S R
BREMERRMEZ AR BEZERAL -

We identified the valuation of interests in associates as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the Group's interests
in associates in the context of the Group's consolidated
financial statements, combined with the significant judgments
associated with determining the carrying value of interests in
associates.

B A MERAM T 17RI20)FIRE - SEE 2 TEH
EYEBRRENYERENH L QAL A2,690,680,00078
JC AN E B E EL)58% o

As disclosed in notes 17 and 32(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group's associates of
HK$2,690,680,000, representing approximately 58% of
the Group's total assets, are principally engaged in property
development and property investment.

BERER SRR IR Z BRI KA - WIREER RS
MEEMEEREREBRETHE  TEHRREMEL/AR
EEEPMELENEBE AR ZME - EEBRBEMHERY
B WKHEETERHRRLIBEARE  2FERKREE
EEmBELEREG s MSEMEE -

The Group's interests in associates are carried at cost and
adjusted for post-acquisition profits and other comprehensive
income that mainly contribute by changes in fair value of
investment properties, in which the fair value as calculated
by the Valuer is based on certain significant assumptions
and key inputs that involve the management's judgments,
including term yield, revisionary yield and market unit rent.

DERBEFRLT —T-NFFR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Key Audit Matters (continued)

BEMREETSERRFRERZISE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BPBRERERBE ARz a2 Hh 2 BT B

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the valuation of
interests in associates included:

. FHEEREEBE A RERNEHEEESIRE ¢ HE
FHEEDZ BSES) ~ BEh REEIE

. Assessing the appropriateness of management's
accounting for interests in associates; evaluating the
competence, capabilities and objectivity of the Valuer;

« ERFHEEZHEBRESE  METHZRR - HE
iz E2ER - EMAZBARAGEEL T RS
ABIE

. Understanding the Valuer's valuation process and
methodology, the performance of the property markets,
significant assumptions adopted, critical judgmental
areas and key inputs used in the valuation;

. HETERBZDERBRRZEEN + &

. Evaluating the reasonableness of the methodology and
assumptions to industry norms; and

« BRERMEVETSONE  BEHREREEZEN
Kii5EiE - fHOEIRE R ARARAZ T 2R AR
BRI -

. Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs
adopted by management and the Valuer by comparing
them, on a sample basis, to entity-specific information
and market data based on our knowledge of the
property markets.
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WA B R -

KRBT EMHEREE  EF8EFE E5H
SEEEMRES  YEEEBEN THEESEL
BRENEMNER  BRIEEEEH EKEE
B IEE - R 2N EE B ERRATITHY
A BRIERAURBELEREREE -

BERENTEREIBIE -

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Other Information

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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BRI ERER
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DREEERLR —T-NFFR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the Directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor's
report is Sze Ching Yiu.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong 18th March, 2020
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mERER CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS
B FE —FE— N+ =F—HIFEE for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019
—E-hE —E-N\&
2019 2018
k=g FET FET
NOTES HK$°000 HK8'000
A Revenue 5 55,944 58,454
HAA Other income 6 21,543 10,581
H e R &R Other gains and losses 7 (2.227) (415)
TEEEEEEE 2 RE - Impairment losses under expected
PakichE R credit loss model, net of reversal (180) (766)
He REMm Rent and rates (1,588) (1,965)
BFEREE Building management fees (6.389) (6,374)
RERKA Staff costs
(BEEEHL) (including directors’ emoluments) (13,726) (12,988)
e R Depreciation and amortisation (85) (568)
HIERIRE Repairs and maintenance (1,312) (1,328)
Hksz Other expenses (8.404) (8,003)
Rt AREWE 2 AR (BEE Operating profit before change in fair
EoFES=binkl value of investment properties 43,576 36,628
REWEZ AREE Change in fair value of investment
2 properties 15 9,128 25,631
=Ykl Operating profit 52,704 62,259
FEAR B R B Share of profit of associates 8,967 56,302
FRBE AT & A Profit before taxation 61,671 118,561
FriSfisz Income tax expenses 8 (3.657) (5,814)
AN s ) Profit for the year 9 58,014 112,747
b-7/1] B
HK cents HK cents
SRR Earnings per share
N Basic 12 4.67 9.08




DREEERLR —T-NFFR

FeERaRRAtZERRER CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
B FE —FE— N+ =F—HIFEE for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019
—Z-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
FET FET
HK$°000 HK8000
AN A Profit for the year 58,014 112,747
Hih2mE(EA) K Other comprehensive (expenses) income:
TEENAHEE B HE - Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:
Bh&AR Surplus on revaluation of
—MHE T R EY) — Leasehold land and buildings - 2,619
— I AR — Land use rights - 9,767
= 12,386
BERSENNABEE Change in fair value of club memberships (6,239) -
FREMEEWREA A EE Change in fair value of equity instrument
BRIBZRATANAAERE at fair value through other
2E) comprehensive income 1,041 (1,134)
BREGBERIATE Deferred tax effect on revaluation - (6,882)
(5.198) 4,370
BB AL BT DI E 1R Itemn that may be reclassified subsequently to
LA - profit or loss:
ERERE Currency translation differences (1,271) (1,101)
REFEMERE(ER) K Other comprehensive (expenses) income
BREiR for the year, net of tax (6.469) 3,269
REL P EW LR Total comprehensive income for the year 51,545 116,016
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ReEMBERRE

RoFE-AF+—HA=+—H

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION
at 31st December, 2019

—E-hE TN\
2019 2018
k=g FEIT FET
NOTES HKS$000 HK$'000
HE ASSETS
ERBDEE Non-current assets
Y - B KRB Property, plant and equipment 14 1,007 933
"EME Investment properties 15 1,383,647 1,376,380
REFE N R Z s Interests in associates 17 2,690,680 2,681,713
FEWE R Loan receivables 20 175,152 125,032
BREMEEEEEAREBEERE 2 Equity instrument at fair value through
AT H other comprehensive income 18 38,705 37,664
(i p Club memberships 4,261 10,500
4,293,452 4,232,222
mEEE Current assets
FEMFRIE ~ FENERTR - e Debtors, prepayments, deposits and
HAb fEMGRIE other receivables 19 13,746 11,839
FEURE R Loan receivables 20 44,438 70,952
JE LT 4 A R AR RN Amounts due from associates 27 90,229 200,229
RIERBIFT1S 154 Income tax recoverable 68 1,637
RekReFE Cash and cash equivalents 21 217,031 198,001
365,512 482,658
HEE Total assets 4,658,964 4,714,880
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DREEERLR —T-NFFR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
at 31st December, 2019

—E—-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
k=g FEIT FET
NOTES HKS$000 HK3'000
a2 EQUITY
&4 Share capital 22 681,899 681,899
fEE Reserves 3,754,690 3,827,251
s Total equity 4,436,589 4,509,150
&f" LIABILITIES
FREBDAR Non-current liability
BEEHEAE Deferred tax liabilities 23 170,093 170,881
mEAR Current liabilities
FERRIEREREA Creditors and accruals 24 32,497 27,334
JE B & A RIAREX Amounts due to associates 27 17,236 7,416
FERTETISBE Income tax payable 2,549 99
52,282 34,849
Ham Total liabilities 222,375 205,730
ARARARK Total equity and liabilities 4,658,964 4,714,880

HHNECEEF67TE 2R BMKREN
ZZF-_AtN\BREESRENRETIE
W TMIEFHARESE

R E
Patrick Lee Seng Wei
=

Director

The consolidated financial statements on pages 66 to 167 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 18th March, 2020

and are signed on its behalf by:

HRi6
Edwin Lo King Yau

EF

Director
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ReRERXR CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY
BE _—FE—NEF-H=F+—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2019
#& 0x ER
123 EftG0 EfRR gl 1] ] RERH HasH
Investment Property
Share  revaluation  revaluation Exchange Retained
capital reserve reserve reserve profits Total
TET TEL TET TEL TET TET
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$000 HK§'000 HK$'000
WoB-\E—F—8  Atlstlnuay, 2018 681,899 34,983 73418 (6462) 3919559 4703397
ERREA Profit for the year - - - - 112,747 112,747
TFEEREEE  Change in fair value of land
REsme use rights and leasehold land
DREEE and buildings - - 5504 - - 5,504
FREMEENR Change in fair value of equity
BARBEREZRA  instrument at fair value
IAZRrEER through other
comprehensive income - (1,134) - - - (1,134)
BlEREaE Currency translation differences - - - (1,101) - (1,101)
REEEMEE Other comprehensive (expenses)
(B e income for the year - (1,134) 5504 (1,101) - 3,269
AEE2E(ERE)NE  Total comprehensive (expenses)
et income for the year - (1,134) 5,504 (1,701) 112,747 116,016

THEBE=T—t%F  Dividend relating to 2017

Re#z13) (note 13) - - - - (310,263) (310,263)
WZE-N\F At 315t December, 2018
+-A=1+-H 681,899 33,849 78922 (7,563) 3,722,043 4,509,150
i Profit o the year - - - - 58014 58014
(EESE g Change in fair value of club
NrEEED memberships - (6,239) - - - (5,239)
FREMEZENE Change in fair value of equity
BRABEREZZBA  instument at fair value
TEZRREERE  though other
comprehensive income - 1,041 - - - 1,041
HERERR Currency translation differences - - - (1.271) - (1.271)
AEEEM2EER  Other comprehensive expenses
for the year - (5198) - (1271) - (6,469)
REERME(EMA)ME  Total comprehensive (expenses)
k] income for the year - (5,198) - (1271) 58,014 51,545

SNBE_Z-N\F Dividend relating to 2018 (note 13)

ReH213) - - - - (124,106) (124,106)
REE-NE At 31t December, 2019
+=A=+-H 681,899 28,651 78922 (8834) 3655951 4,436,589

ey



DERBEFRAE —T-NAFF®R 7]

FEeRERHER CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

BE _—FE—NEF-H=F+—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

—Z—h¥F —T-N\F
2019 2018
F#&iT FET
HK$000 HK8'000
BEEY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BR A5 A1 a2 Profit before taxation 61,671 118,561
R Adjustments for:
PrE R #H Depreciation and amortisation 85 568
Y H B 1R Net exchange loss 2,227 417
HEWE - BB & Gain on disposal of property,
At Flak plant and equipment - )
TREEEEERE 2 RE - Impairment loss under expected credit loss
Paskic )k model, net of reversal 180 766
REMENREBEZE Change in fair value of investment properties (9,128) (25,631)
i Y NCIE S Share of profit of associates (8.967) (56,302)
KEFEBEM P ERE Dividend income from equity instrument
BRARBEREZ at fair value through other
AR TR 2 BB HA comprehensive income (1,500) (1,500)
ERITHBHA Bank interest income (3,246) (4,456)
ERABUA Loan interest income (17,867) (5,787)
BBEMEEWEE AR EE Interest income on equity instrument
B3 2 BN T AR BUA at fair value through other
comprehensive income (213) -
HEEREHRIC Operating cash flows before working capital
HERSM changes 23,242 26,634
FEWGRIE ~ TANERFR - e &k Increase in debtors, prepayments, deposits and
E b e WCRIBIE AN other receivables (1,907) (3,056)
JETFRIE K e ST B R 4G AN Increase in creditors and accruals 5,163 394
REEEEBEZHEM Cash generated from operations 26,498 23,972
REN(BR)BEBEN Hong Kong profits tax refund (paid) 1 (6,286)
REEEEBZREBE NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 26,499 17,686
RERY INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BTER Loan advanced (152,000) (168,681)
BEME - WELRE Purchases of property, plant and equipment (159) (182)
BRENR Loan repaid 127,587 -
B N ElEN Repayment from associates 110,000 121,453
BUEFF B Loan interest received 17,867 5,787
2SR TR B Bank interest received 3,246 4,456
Bk EEAEMEAEREIE AR Dividends received from equity instrument
EBEREZBRATENHRE at fair value through
other comprehensive income 1,500 1,500
Bk EEBEMEAEREEIE AR Interest received from equity instrument at
BEREZKRATANFE fair value through other comprehensive income 213 -
FRYEEAR IR R PO R 8 = & A Withdrawal of non-pledged time deposits
B 2 FE BRI R 2 HR AR with original maturity of over three months - 73,323
HEWE BER Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
FABFTIS equipment - 59
REREEBZHLPBE NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 108,254 37,715
e
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FERaRExE(&|) CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)
B FE —FE— N+ =F—HIFEE for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019
—Z-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
b TFETT FET
NOTE HKS$000 HK3'000
MEXE FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BERERE Dividend paid 13 (124,106) (310,263)
REBE N EMER Advance from associates 9,820 6,128
ARMEEBECE22E NET CASH USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES (114,286) (304,135)
BeRASEHE NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
/(R D )BE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20,467 (248,734)
REMZRER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Ba%E AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 198,001 447,088
SERKEWS EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
Fd 7 RATE CHANGES (1,437) (353)
REXRZRER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
ReEE AT THE END OF THE YEAR 217,031 198,001
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

1.  General

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong and
its securities are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”). Its parent is Autobest Holdings Limited (incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands) and its ultimate parent is Tian An China Investments
Company Limited (incorporated in Hong Kong and listed on the Stock
Exchange). The address of the registered office which is also principal place
of business of the Company is disclosed in the “Corporate Information”
section of the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "Group”) are property investment, property leasing and
estate management. The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollar ("HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA")
for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-
2017 Cycle
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new and amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group's
financial positions and performance for the current and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the current year.
HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 “Leases”, and the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to
contracts that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 "Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”
and not apply this standard to contracts that were not previously identified
as containing a lease. Therefore, the Group has not reassessed contracts
which already existed prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1st January, 2019, the
Group applies the definition of a lease in accordance with the requirements
set out in HKFRS 16 in assessing whether a contract contains a lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)
As a lessor

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16, the Group is
not required to make any adjustment on transition for leases in which the
Group is a lessor but account for these leases in accordance with HKFRS
16 from the date of initial application and comparative information has not
been restated.

(a) Upon application of HKFRS 16, new lease contracts entered into
but commence after the date of initial application relating to the
same underlying assets under existing lease contracts are accounted
as if the existing leases are modified as at 1st January, 2019. The
application has had no impact on the Group's consolidated statement
of financial position at 1st January, 2019. However, effective on Tst
January, 2019, lease payments relating to the revised lease term after
modification are recognised as income on straight-line basis over the
extended lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)
As a lessor (continued)

(b) Before application of HKFRS 16, refundable rental deposits received
were considered as rights and obligations under leases to which
HKAS 17 applied under trade and other payables. Based on the
definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not
payments relating to the right-of-use assets and were adjusted to
reflect the discounting effect at transition.

(c) Effective on 1st January, 2019, the Group has applied HKFRS 15
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers” to allocate consideration
in the contract to each lease and non-lease components. The change
in allocation basis has had no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the current year.

As a lessee
The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with the cumulative effect

recognised at the date of initial application, 1st January, 2019.

The Group has assessed that they have no material impact on the Group's
financial position and performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture3?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material4
and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform#

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2021

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the acquisition
date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after 1st
January, 2020

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2020
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2022

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs, a revised
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting was issued in 2018. lIts
consequential amendments, the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards, will be effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2020.

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) anticipate that the application of
all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for certain properties and financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are accounted
for in accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1st January, 2019) or HKAS 17
(before application of HKFRS 16), and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which are transacted at
fair value and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be used
to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation technique is
calibrated so that at initial recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or

indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The significant accounting policies are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Interests in associates (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting.
The financial statements of associates used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate. Changes in net assets of the
associate other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
not accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group's share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group's interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method
from the date on which the investee becomes an associate. On acquisition
of the investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within
the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Interests in associates (continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the interest
in an associate may be impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised in
the Group's consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests
in the associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation
is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of
goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group's performance as the Group performs;

. the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

. the Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the distinct good or service.

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the Group assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the definition under
HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the

contract are subsequently changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance or operating
leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee,
the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model.

The Group as lessor (upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance
with transitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease components, the
Group applies HKFRS 15 to allocate consideration in a contract to lease and
non-lease components. Non-lease components are separated from lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-alone selling prices.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a new
lease from the effective date of the modification, considering any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to the original lease as part of the lease
payments for the new lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor (upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance
with transitions in note 2) (continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under HKFRS 9 and
initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance
with transitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease component on the basis
of their relative stand-alone prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance
with transitions in note 2) (continued)

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:
. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
less any lease incentives received;

. any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling
and removing the underlying assets, restoring the site on which it is
located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

Except for those that are classified as investment properties and measured
under fair value model, right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the lease term
are depreciated from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance
with transitions in note 2) (continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and measures
the lease liability at the present value of lease payments that are unpaid at
that date. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses
the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable; and

. variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest
accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

. the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of
exercise of a purchase option, in which case the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

. the lease payments change due to changes in expected payment
under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using
the initial discount rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (prior to 1st January, 2019)

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land held under
operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of
rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purpose.
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation.

Effective on 1st January, 2019, investment properties also include
leased properties which are being recognised as right-of-use assets upon
application of HKFRS 16 and subleased by the Group under operating
leases.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at fair value, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or
accrued operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Effective on 1st January,
2019, a leased property which is recognised as a right-of-use asset upon
application of HKFRS 16 is derecognised if the Group as intermediate
lessor classifies the sublease as a finance lease. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
profit or loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Club memberships

Club memberships with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment on property, plant and equipment

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its property, plant and equipment to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication that corporate
assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual cash-generating units, when a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment on property, plant and equipment (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
except for trade receivables arising from contracts with customers which
are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income and
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Dividend income which are derived from the Group's ordinary course of
business are presented as revenue.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is
to collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both selling and collecting contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL"), except that at the date of initial application of
HKFRS 9/initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither held
for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near
term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designed and effective as a hedging
instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that are
required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured
at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)
()  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for
financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost and debt
instruments/receivables subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning
of the reporting period following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.

(i)  Equity instrument designated as at FVTOCI

Investment in equity instrument at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“equity instrument at FVTOCI") is subsequently measured at fair
value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve; and are not subject to impairment assessment. The
cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal
of the equity investment, and will continue to be held in the investment
revaluation reserve.

Dividends from these investments in equity instrument are recognised in
profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is established,
unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the “revenue” line item in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit loss
("ECL") model on financial assets (including trade and other receivables,
amounts due from associates, cash and cash equivalents and loan
receivables) which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount
of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
12-months ECL ("12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The ECL on
these assets are assessed individually for debtors with significant balances
and/or collectively based on shared credit risk characteristics.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to
12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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3. BESITBR®E) 3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
eMTAR(#E) Financial instruments (continued)

EHEEF) Financial assets (continued)

SRHEERE(E) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

() 1EERBAKIEEM ()  Significant increase in credit risk

R HEERBR RS B VRERAREARE I In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
B AEERESR T ARNRKRERPLIRENRN  recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
G EZE R T AR VAERBESHIEEQME  financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
B o (ELLFREEY - A EHTeEEAERAEE  occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
WEERTEHEER  BHEBALHEHALES  In making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
MBS NE T BN S B RTRE &R - qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that is available

without undue cost or effort.

LER  FEHEERBRELTREBEMEGSEET  In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing
FIER : whether credit risk has increased significantly:

ERTREINB(IIE) XABEEFRNER
SIEHEBABL

EEEBIRTISEENEAT(L - Fim
(S8 B R AIER IR 5T AMS R OZIRR
4

BRESRES ABTEEBEENENA
ETRARET - PSSR R B T
BRI

BERAREXENERKFBRERLE - &

EHEHABTEEFRENEE AR NE

MBS APTEEE AR RN ER
HIEHAEATFEE) o

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk,
e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant decrease
in the debtor's ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results
of the debtors; and

an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group presumes
that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on a debt
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the
debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting
date. A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has
a low risk of default, (ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and (iii) adverse changes
in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit
risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of “investment grade” as
per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)  Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event of
default occurs when information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals held
by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has occurred
when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

(i)  Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider;

(d) itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because
of financial difficulties.

e —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group wirites off a financial asset when there is information indicating
that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or
loss.

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss
given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.
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e MM RMEE(H]) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE-—FE—NE+ - H=+—HIEEF for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

3. BESITBR®E) 3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

&RTR(HE) Financial instruments (continued)

EHEEF) Financial assets (continued)

SRHEERE(E) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v) TEHEEEENFERERE) (v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

HMIBEEEBEREEEAEN ERMAMEB TAE  Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases where
FEBBERAMFENER  Bl&m T EKZATAE  evidence at the individual instrument level may not yet be available, the
SR financial instruments are grouped on the following basis:

CRITANUE(WAKRENZ ZMEME - Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's trade and other

WERFRAE R FHE o BERE A R BB (E R receivables are each assessed as a separate group. Loans to related
HHEITRHEEEETE) parties are assessed for ECL on an individual basis);
. EEAAROR . Past-due status;
EBARME  RERTE K . Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
HNEBE AR KM EE o . External credit ratings where available.

DHETEEEEB TSR - UWHERESABIKD  The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the
EEABEIMEERBRRIE constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

MEWARESBREENEREMESE - EMME8  Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
BEFERE  AFBRAZSEEENEIAK  financal asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
EtE - interest income is calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.




e M ERMEGE)

BE—FE-NF1-A=1T—HILFE

B

3. BE

I8
il

=TI ZR (48)

il

&I RGR)

SHEE (&)

BOEER T A E

EEEEEWDRRSREZANENERLES
TREEREERER BRI MHELR KD
BEBES—ERE ARESSHUEERERE
E o MASBELREEITARREREEZ BRI
R K ER - WEEZESHEEBEE  MAE
BAEBHERENZEE ZREERAREHAX
NEBEZEEEE - WAKERECEZESRE
ERARZERORARED® - AIREEEE
HRERMEE - TP REZ SRR AT EIT
e -

REUHBERRBHEKN A ENEREER - Z&
EREERD WL ERRERN  Z8NER A
TR o

BHURERARENE AR RZEBE
2 ERER A A BEFENRATARER
HERRFARREE[RHEEN R BRERERT
BEERERERMN

A K =3¢,
gHEEER

DREEERLR —T-NFFR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Group
has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain
or loss previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is not
reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade creditors, other creditors, tenants deposits
and amounts due to associates are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit
or loss.

The Group accounts for an exchange with a lender of a financial liability
with substantially different terms as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. A substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial liability or a part of it
(whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the Group) is
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities (continued)

The Group considers that the terms are substantially different if the
discounted present value of the cash flows under the new terms, including
any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted using the original
effective interest rate, is at least 10% different from the discounted
present value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.
Accordingly, such exchange of debt instruments or modification of terms
is accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are
recognised as part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. The exchange
or modification is considered as non-substantial modification when such
difference is less than 10%.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
("foreign currencies”) are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case the
exchange rates at the date of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange reserve.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered services entitling
them to the contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from “profit before taxation” because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such
properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

4. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the Directors are required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group's assets are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. The Financial Controller of the Company determines the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.
Significant judgments are used to determining the fair value of these assets.

In estimating the fair value of an asset, the Group uses market observable
data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the
Group engages independent and qualified professional valuer (the “Valuer”)
to perform the valuation. The Financial Controller of the Company works
closely with the Valuer to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model. The Financial Controller reports the findings to the
board of directors of the Company every half year to explain the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value of the assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

4. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)
Fair value measurements and valuation processes (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are not
based on observable market data to estimate the fair value of investment
properties and unlisted equity securities classified as equity instrument at
FVTOCI.

When determine the fair values of investment properties, assumptions
and key inputs that involve significant judgments, including term vyield,
revisionary yield and market unit rent, were adopted.

When determine the fair value of equity instrument at FVTOCI, which is
principally engaged in property investment, assumptions and key inputs that
involve significant judgments, including term yield, revisionary yield, market
unit rent and minority discount rate, were adopted.

Notes 15 and 29(c) provide detailed information about the valuation
techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in the determination of the
fair value of these assets.

Provision of ECL for loan receivables

The Group determines the ECL for loan receivables based on probability of
default and loss given default for each individual loan as each of them have
different loss patterns.

In determining the ECL, the Group engages the Valuer to perform the
calculation of ECL taking into account on each of the borrower and their
guarantor’'s background, repayment history of their loans and forward-
looking information that is reasonable and supportable available without
undue costs or effort. The Financial Controller of the Company works closely
with the Valuer to determine the appropriate default rate and loss given
default rate. At every reporting date, the probability of default and loss given
default are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. Information about
the ECL and the Group's loan receivables is disclosed in note 29(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

5a. Revenue and Segment Information

ZE-NF —TN\F
2019 2018
FHET FET
HK$°000 HK8'000

KREMENETEESE Rental income from investment properties
A that is fixed 49,532 49,633
MEEERB Estate management fees 4,912 7,321

REFEBEMEEKGERAREE Dividend income from equity instrument

BRIE 2 IR AR T AR B at FVTOCI 1,500 1,500
55,944 58,454

MEREEBNRANR-BREHAER - AEED
BENERMNGEE WERE S ERERY
EEEBENWA  REABHEHEAONERZE

5 BREREERRE AEENNEEEE -
RBEBSHERE ISR T Bt —T—hF

R-B-N\Et A=t BLFRERBNE
B FHRED0A KBRS -

RRABNPTEECHAR/EDNEEREKE -

HITEEZEEARBZERR  BRA/ELEENE

HERMEEERRBE -2 LENE - HItt

BEHAEFNWA - FEAREERBGEES
BB o

R-ZZE—NF+-A=+—8 BHREQFRZE
& BREMEERSRAREBEEREZRAT
ARBREFTIN URBEBZIERDEERES
1,332,523,000% 7. (=2 —/\ 4 : 1,328,978,000
BIr) MR AEAREMBE(HRE]) 2R
&) & E {8 556,392,000 0 ( =T — )\ F ¢
58,835,000/87T) °

Revenue from estate management fees is recognised over time. The
Group applied the practical expedient in HKFRS to recognise revenue in the
amount that the Group has the right to invoice based on the terms of the
relevant lease agreements in which the Group bills a fixed monthly amount
in advance. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price of estate
management services allocated to the remaining performance obligations as
at 31st December, 2019 and 2018 is not disclosed.

The executive directors of the Company have been identified as the chief
operating decision maker. The executive directors regard the Group's
business as a single operating segment, which is property leasing and estate
management and reviews financial information accordingly. Therefore, no
segment analysis of the Group’s revenue, results assets and liabilities are
presented.

As at 31st December, 2019, other than interests in associates, equity
instrument at FVTOCI and loan receivables, the total of non-current assets
located in Hong Kong is HK$1,332,523,000 (2018: HK$1,328,978,000),
and the total of non-current assets located in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC") is HK$56,392,000 (2018: HK$58,835,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 1st December, 2019

REMBGHRERME(E)
BE—F-NF| - A=1—HILFE
5b. FBEFZEH 5b. Information About Major Customers

ERSE B AR AT0%IA L EEF D HIREYE

Revenue from customers relating to rents from investment properties of

HEBENESPEALT the corresponding years contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group are as follows:
—Z-hEF —ZE-NF
2019 2018
FET T
HK$000 HKg'000
ZPA Customer A 6,425 N/A!
=FB Customer B 6,143 N/A!
=PC Customer C 5,886 8,115

! R AL BB AR B AU AR 10% © !

The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue of the

Group.

6. HaA 6. Other Income
ZE—-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
FHET FET
HK$000 HK$'000
HRITHLEHA Bank interest income 3,246 4,456
BRF B A Loan interest income 17,867 5,787
b Others 430 338
21,543 10,581
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

7. Other Gains and Losses

—EZ-hE —T-N\F
2019 2018
FHET T
HK$°000 HK$000
JHEE B 1R Net exchange loss (2,227) (417)
HEWE - BB RERE 2w Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment - 2
(2.227) (415)
8. FTEHix i 8. Income Tax Expenses
k- 2 3 —TN\F
2019 2018
FEIT T
HK$000 HK3'000
BEEREH Hong Kong Profits Tax
RNEE Current year 4,027 3,148
BEFE(EREE BETR (Over) under provision in prior years (9) 50
4,018 3,198
RAERIE (H75723) Deferred taxation (note 23) (361) 2,616
REFREREZ M Income tax expenses for the year 3,657 5814
RZTZ-NF=ZA-+—H BBLEEEB_  On 21st March, 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The
Z—LFEHRBUERT) (F7TR)GHER(HEBAE  Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill") which
=) HS| ARBRHIFISHESIE o EPIERER  introduced the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into
“E-N\EZAZTNARBRAERLNER  law on 28th March, 2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under

HIEEB® - REMEHFESRESNE  aERKE
EERBNE2H BB TR 1% 8.25% ) F &
i iR iE2 B & A TT AR G 121650 ) B K &L
i o THAMABFISHEENEEE B SR
HEEETE1 6,50 M — TR BT

the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of
the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2
million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying
for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat
rate of 16.5%.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

8. Income Tax Expenses (continued)

The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

BT taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:
—Z-hE —TN\F
2019 2018
FET T
HKS$’000 HK8'000
FR A A1 Vo ) Profit before taxation 61,671 118,561
REBEHHE165%E 2 F1E  Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax of 16.5%

(ZF—\F : 16.5%) (2018: 16.5%) 10,176 19,563
TR E 2 & Effect of different tax rate 795 62
AR 2 iR Tax effect of expenses not deductible

2 for tax purpose 177 277
IERBRMAZ FHIE 2 Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose (4.279) (3,209)
JE(EHEE N RGN 2 THIBR & Tax effect of share of profit of associates (1,480) (9,290)
BEFE(BERE) BEIR (Over) under provision in prior years (9) 50
AERTIABIE 2 HIATE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 6 7
A BERERTIEFGRE Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not

ZRIERE recognised (1,551) (1,225)
BAER EREGE Income tax at recessionary rate (165) (165)
Hith Others (13) (256)
REFAEHEZH Income tax expenses for the year 3,657 5814
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9. AEFEERmA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

9. Profit for the Year

for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

DREEERLR —T-NFFR

—EZ-hE —T-N\F
2019 2018
FEIT FET
HKS$’000 HK$000
RELZRFEH Profit for the year has been arrived
at after charging:
mE - WELREBITE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 85 454
B L A Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
TarEER on land use rights - 114
rEMEiHeE Total depreciation and amortisation 85 568
FekHEMER Salaries and other costs 13,426 12,648
RIKEFER Retirement benefit costs 300 340
BETBRBE Total staff costs 13,726 12,988
EXMESRAZREMERN Direct operating expenses of investment
EEREEEA properties that generated rental income 9,160 8,868
WEEEHESWAZIREMEN Direct operating expenses of investment
HEEEER properties that did not generate rental income 356 191
ZHER Audit fee 1,273 1,236
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FREMBERME(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

B FE —FE— N+ =F—HIFEE for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019
10. EE8¢ 10. Directors’ Emoluments
PN T (ZE—N\F  8fi)EE2BE€  The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven (2018: eight)
UNNE directors were as follows:

—Z-hEF

2019
e/
PRI ER HER R TRF

Hittig#l BRziEs FHEIER
Salaries/ Performance Retirement

EEWS  service fees related benefits
Directors’ and other incentive scheme #it
fees benefits payments contributions Total
FET FET FET FET FET

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BITEE Executive Directors

FRE Patrick Lee Seng Wei 10 325 362 - 697
FHEB (Wita) Lee Shu Yin (Note a) 10 2,275 2,032 18 4,335
Bt Edwin Lo King Yau 10 - - - 10
g Tao Tsan Sang 10 218 272 20 520

40 2,818 2,666 38 5,562

B RZHITEEMS T 2N REIEARARF N The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services

REBEG 2 IR - in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.
BIEHRTEER Independent
Non-Executive Directors

TR Li Chak Hung 10 118 - - 128

HRER Choi Kin Man 10 92 - - 102

o) 523 Lisa Yang Lai Sum 10 92 - - 102
30 302 - - 332

FRBRZ B IFITESHE T 2N MEIES  The Independent Non-Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were
AATRSEMB AR ZEEZRE - for their services as directors of the Company and/or its subsidiaries.

) Total 5,894

e —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

DREEERLR —T-NFFR

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

10. EEMl® @ 10. Directors’ Emoluments (continued)
—Z-)\F
2018
e/
MR8 K s} S RIRTEA
H g Bz e BEES
Salaries/  Performance Retirement
EEikn service fees related benefits
Directors' and other incentive scheme st
fees benefits payments  contributions Total
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BITEE Executive Directors
FRE Patrick Lee Seng Wei 10 319 372 - 701
FHEB(Wata) Lee Shu Yin (Note a) 10 2,000 167 18 2,195
HR Edwin Lo King Yau 10 - - - 10
g Tao Tsan Sang 10 211 249 19 489
40 2,530 788 37 3,395

PRBERZATEEHE T ERNREREARR

RAREE S R -
ERTES Non-Executive Director
e EY) Lee Seng Hui (Note b)

PRBRZIFNTESHE I RN REEER
RAIMANEEER 2R

The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the

Group.

The Non-Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were for his
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company

and the Group.
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e MM RMEE(H]) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B FE —FE— N+ =F—HIFEE for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019
10. EEMl® @ 10. Directors’ Emoluments (continued)
—ENF
2018
e/
%52 K HEE RIRTEA
H g Bl e BEIESA
Salaries/  Performance Retirement
ko service fees related benefits
Directors' and other incentive scheme st
fees benefits payments  contributions Total
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BIFRTER Independent
Non-Executive Directors
e Li Chak Hung 10 111 - - 121
HRER Choi Kin Man 10 86 - - 9%
BRE%R Lisa Yang Lai Sum 10 86 - - 9%
30 283 - - 313

BT BT ESHE AN EIE The Independent Non-Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were

BANRR/SHRBARZEEZ R for their services as directors of the Company and/or its subsidiaries.

B Total 3,708
Bzt - Notes:

@ RZE-—N\F-ANBEZRE- (@  Appointed on 4th January, 2018.

b)) RZZE-N\F—AEART- (b)  Resigned on 4th January, 2018.

BREEERTHBEEDRBITARTEFER  Mr. Patrick Lee Seng Wei and Mr. Lee Shu Yin perform the function of

THBEHBE  RAULBE MEBIEAEIE  the chairman and chief executive of the Company respectively and their

BERRITHRARIRERSE 2 BS - emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by the
chairman and chief executive.

REBEE-Z-HER-_ZF—\E+-HA=+—H None of the Directors waived any emoluments in the years ended 3 1st
WHFE  WEEEREEMAHE - December, 2019 and 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

11. Employees’ Emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, there are
two (2018: two) directors of the Group whose emoluments are included in
note 10 above. The emoluments of the three (2018: three) individuals for
the year ended 31st December, 2019 are as follows:

—Z—-hEF —TN\F

2019 2018

F#T FHET

HKS$'000 HK3'000

e LEHMmEA Salaries and other benefits 2,368 2,124
HEEEH & Performance related incentive payments 166 111
RNB GBI 43R Retirement benefits scheme contributions 51 51
2,585 2,286

N+ T DT The emoluments of the individual are within the following bands:
—E-hEF —E-NF
2019 2018
EE®HE EE8EH
Number of Number of
employees employees
077T — 1,000,000/ 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 3 3

AEE 2 F BB CRIR IR 1T S #r BN S & & 48R
SERALEANRE ZRBREE - REMFA -
AEEYESNEAMES FTZAERESFZIAL
TE RSB IRE AR LB 2 #REM -

The remuneration policies of the Group are based on the prevailing
remuneration level in the market and the performance of respective group
companies and individuals employees. During both years, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group.
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AR AR 2 SREREF TR T 5B

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

12. Earnings Per Share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the owners of

#: the Company is based on the following:
—2-hF —TN\F
2019 2018
F#T FHET
HKS$'000 HK$000
27 Earnings
A EGIREARRT 2 % F Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings
(AR RRREERFEZRA) per share (profit for the year attributable
to the owners of the Company) 58,014 112,747
—E-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
F F
‘000 ‘000
& Number of shares
AT ESRELRBTZ Number of ordinary shares
ETERER for the purpose of basic earnings per share 1,241,055 1,241,055

HR-ZZE-NFER-Z-N\FERNILBET
EIMBELTBER Rk —E-hFER-ZT
—N\FE  WEEEEREERT

13. IRB

No diluted eamnings per share for both 2019 and 2018 were presented as
there were no potential ordinary shares in issue for both 2019 and 2018.

13. Dividends
—EB—-hF —E-)N\F
2019 2018
FHET FHET
‘000 ‘000
REENERDRZBER : Dividend recognised as
distributions during the year:
BN N\FzhHkRE An interim dividend (in lieu of a final dividend)
(RERERRE) AER 0L for 2018 paid of HK10 cents

(ZZ2—N\F : BENZZE—«tF (2018: second interim dividend for

FERFEHREAER25E) 2017 paid of HK25 cents) per share 124,106 310,263

RRERRE  EEHERBEEE_T—NF

T A+ BUEETROKREREFHR

B(REBREBKE) ER2581 - A5t8%E5s
| 31,026,000/ 7T (—Z— \4F : FRR107810) -

e —

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, an interim dividend (in lieu
of a final dividend) of HK$31,026,000, representing HK2.5 cents per share,
based on the number of shares in issue as at 3 1st December, 2019 (2018:
HK10 cents per share) has been approved by the Directors.



DERBEFRAE —ZT-NAFF® 119

REMBRRMEGR) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B FE —FE— N+ =F—HIFEE for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019
14, Y13~ WE K& 14. Property, Plant and Equipment
HELH
REEN
Leasehold BAERME RERKE RE
land and Office Furniture Motor #it
buildings  equipment and fixtures vehicles Total
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B#FE CcosT
RZZ—-)\F—H—H At 1st January, 2018 3,813 2274 16,256 379 22,722
T ERE R Currency translation difference - - (M) - (N
EBRERENE Transfer to investment properties (2,848) - - - (2,848)
EE Additions - 182 - - 182
HE Disposals - (224) (16) - (240)
RZZ—\F At 31st December, 2018
+ZA=+—~H 965 2,232 16,239 379 19,815
BERERE Currency translation difference - - (1) - (M
BE Additions - 139 20 - 159
RNZT—NEF At 31st December, 2019
+=ZA=+—~H 965 2,371 16,258 379 19,973
HE DEPRECIATION
RZZ—-\$—H—H At 1st January, 2018 645 2,155 15,896 379 19,075
HERERE Currency translation difference - - m - M
REFFE Provided for the year 56 50 348 - 454
ERERENE Transfer to investment properties (463) - - - (463)
iS55 Eliminated from disposals - (167) (16) - (183)
RZT—\&F At 31st December, 2018
+-—A=+—H 238 2,038 16,227 379 18,882
T ERE T Currency translation difference - - (1) - (N
REFFHE Provided for the year 18 61 6 - 85
RZT—N& At 31st December, 2019
+-A=+—H 256 2,099 16,232 379 18,966
IREE CARRYING VALUES
R-Z—-h& At 31st December, 2019
+-A=+—H 709 272 26 - 1,007
RZT—N\&F At 31st December, 2018
+ZA=+—~H 727 194 12 - 933




120 Asiasec Properties Limited Annual Report 2019

FEMBEERMEE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

B FE —FE— N+ =F—HIFEE for the year ended 3 1st December, 2019

14. W% - BB NEE ) 14. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

LNEEBAME  BMERREZITENERZE - The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated using
BB ERANMERARER G EAEREEM  the straight-line method after taking into account of their estimated residual

i RAZIESENT values at the following rates per annum:
HETH RAEKFIEREHR

Leasehold land Over the unexpired lease term
EEM 30Z504F

Buildings 30 to 50 years

PRERE 20%

Office equipment 20%

RRNEE 20%

Furniture and fixtures 20%

B 20-25%

Motor vehicles 20-25%
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HE=E—NEF=A=F—AULFE
15. AW

AEERBEEHELEAAEAXNESNZE
EEVE BEVENEES BEBRTRES
VIM—EARF  LABETEENBHELERE
12 AT R B B A BIASN o« IRAFEF T
EHEERE  AAZBHEEANHEEMSEE

R

HEAHTEERHREERERM,SFAMEFEHR
EMRBERMFRARERE

DREEERLR —T-NFFR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

15. Investment Properties

The Group leases out various residential properties, commercial properties
and carparks under operating leases with rentals payable monthly. The
leases typically run for an initial period of one to six years, with unilateral
rights to extend the lease beyond initial period held by lessees only.
Majority of the lease contracts contain market review clauses in the event
the lessee exercises the option to extend.

The lease contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s
option to purchase the property at the end of lease term.

—EB—hF —E-N\F

2019 2018

FEIT T

HK$°000 HK3'000

REH] At the beginning of the year 1,376,380 1,326,939
R fE S A Transfer from land use rights - 19,804
W - BEMRREBEA Transfer from property, plant and equipment - 5,004

BERERE Currency translation difference (1,861) (998)
AR EBEEE Change in fair values 9,128 25,631
INGEEN At the end of the year 1,383,647 1,376,380
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FEMBERERME(E)
BE—F— fFEF=F=F— I EE
15. IEWHE(®)

AEBZREMERERZABE T NF
TZA=t—RZAaRBETIHEAKEEETMA
RERNBY A BEREXN L - ERRERAEE
RARNE BETTHE - REFVENRAEBE
i MENSSEEEREAEERME -

ZEEFBEREERL st ARTHEE R AED
HERIRENET -

RENEEOMENE  HEHRE—EDLE
RSBEBLEE  ERE—RROERDE
FEARTIBME S MTIE < B E A E
ERET -

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

15. Investment Properties (continued)

The fair values of the Group's investment properties at the date of transfer
and on 31st December, 2019 have been arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out on that dates by Norton Appraisals Holdings Limited, a
firm of independent and qualified professional valuers not connected with
the Group. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

The valuation was principally based on investment method by taking into
account the current rents passing and the reversionary income potential of
tenancies.

For the properties which are currently vacant, the valuation was based
on each of the property interests by capitalisation of the hypothetical and
reasonable market unit rents with a typical lease term and also make
reference to the direct comparison approach. There has been no change
from the valuation technique used in the prior year.

—E-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
FHET FET
HKS$'000 HKg'000
FrEIREMEMNTBEREE Investment properties are all located
W EBOS T in the PRC and Hong Kong and
comprise properties held under:
RHEHEL Long-term lease 1,160,397 1,169,130
FREATAY Medium-term lease 223,250 207,250
1,383,647 1,376,380
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

15. Investment Properties (continued)
The following table gives information about how the fair values of the

major investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy into which

BN R A BERFIKE(—ZE=F)HNER - the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.
KRRE fEERER
FRARGERENR A FESH EEORSBALRRENRE
Investment properties  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques ESmEBR2Y Relationship of unobservable
held by the Group hierarchy  and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs for fair value
IR ER 2 EEWS E= REE(BHERE) BRRER(ZRITHBNEELOUEERRBRERS BARSENENESHALEE
Residential properties Level 3 Investment method (termand BB A DR 1HEIBE) B2ooZ250(“F-N\F . Tk
in Hong Kong reversionary approach) 200%2.5%) °
Term yield, taking into account of yield generated from The increase in the term yield would
TE2YA: comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty result in a decrease in fair value.

The key inputs are:

(1) MEkEE
Term yield;

() EEkEE R
Reversionary yield; and

(3) EREuMmHEELES
Market unit rent of
individual unit

of term income secured and to be received, of 2% to 2.5%
(2018: 2% 0 2.5%).

ERUAE (ZRIENFSFEASNARTLENENE
(&) 52,2502 3%( =5 —/\F : 250%3%) °
Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market
rental income and unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 2.250 to 3% (2018: 2.5% to 3%6).

TREE S RERTRRNERLE - YZRIME R
[ERIEZ (i : FEER  PRANRER) - FOTHEL
BENTFOEFAREAS0ELEETAREAS6SET(Z
T\ : §YIREANAREGVAREA2ET) «
Market unit rent compares with direct market comparables
and taking into account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of property and facilties.
The range of average market unit rent is from around
HK$50 sq.ft/month to HK$56.5 sq.ft/month (2018: HK$31
sq.ft/month to HK$52 sq.ft/month).

EERGEMENEEHALBE
T

The increase in the reversionary
yield would result in a decrease in
fair value.

BB HENEEADLBE
-

The increase in the market unit rent
would result in an increase in fair
value.
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BE—FE-NF1-A=1T—HILFE

15. REWMHE (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

15. Investment Properties (continued)

LRRE HERER
FREFRGARENR 3 TESY EERRSBANARENRE
Investment properties  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques EERLERSY Relationship of unobservable
held by the Group hierarchy  and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs for fair value
&Rz RS E=4 REE(EHERE) REAWRE(ZRITHENEELNRARRRBRERS HEREENENEEHLLER
Commercial properties Level 3 Investment method (termand ~ CRAVE S BB EILEVRE) B2 T5%E50( ZE-N\F . Tk

in Hong Kong

reversionary approach)

IEREA:
The key inputs are:

(1) A%

Term yield;

) #EHEEE R
Reversionary yield; and

(3) EREuMEELES
Market unit rent of
individual unit

2.75%Z%5%) °

Term vyield, taking into account of yield generated from
comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty
of term income secured and to be received, of 2.75% to 5%
(2018: 2.75% to 5%).

EEURE(ZRIBUMSFRES AR LENENE
T8 3250 5.50( Z B —/\F : 3250Z55%) °
Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market
rental income and unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 3.25% to 5.5% (2018: 3.25% to 5.5%).

MSEME RERTSENERLE - WZRIME R
ERIRZ(Gim : EEEs - RN RRE) - FHT5EN
BENFOETARER0ELEET IREA200ET(Z
T-N\E: §¥HREAIBETEEFHREA20ET) °
Market unit rent compares with direct market comparables
and taking into account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of property and facilities.
The range of average market unit rent is from around HK$10
sq.ft./month to HK$200 sq ft/month (2018: HK$18 sq.ft/
month to HK$200 sq.ft/month).

The increase in the term yield would
result in a decrease in fair value.

EEREENENESHRABE
T e

The increase in the reversionary
yield would result in a decrease in
fair value.

TAENRSHENE SN BE
2me

The increase in the market unit rent
would result in an increase in fair
value.
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15. REWMHE (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

DREEERLR —T-NFFR

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

15. Investment Properties (continued)

for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

KRRE fEERER
FREFBERRYR A FESR ErORSBALRRENRE
Investment properties  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques EEREBRSY Relationship of unobservable
held by the Group hierarchy  and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs for fair value
frnEE 2 B E= REE(BHERE) ERRAEE (ZRITLENZELONEXRRBRERS BRAREXHENESHALEE

Carparks in Hong Kong Level 3

Investment method (term and
reversionary approach)

IEREA:
The key inputs are:

(1) Bk
Term yield;

() ERkaE®: R
Reversionary yield; and

(3) EREuMEELES
Market unit rent of
individual unit

WERHB BN RRE) B2 25— /\E  20) «

Term yield, taking into account of yield generated from
comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty
of term income secured and to be received, of 2% (2018:

2%).

EBREX(ZRIENTAFRESRARTHLENENE

fIm{E)B25%( = F—/\F : 2.50%) °

Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market
rental income and unit market value of the comparable

properties, of 2.5% (2018: 2.5%).

TREE S RERTRRNERLE  YZRIME R
[EREZ (I FEER  PRANRER) - FOTHEL
BE48A22008(ZF-N\F : HEA22008T) «

Market unit rent compares with direct market comparables
and taking into account of location and other individual factors
such as road frontage and facilties. The average market unit
rent is around HK$2,200/month (2018: around HK$2,200/

month)

T
The increase in the term yield would
result in a decrease in fair value.

EERGEMENEEHAL BE
T

The increase in the reversionary
yield would result in a decrease in
fair value.

mEENRSNENSERALBE
by

The increase in the market unit rent
would result in an increase in fair
value.
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BE—FE-NF1-A=1T—HILFE

15. REWMHE (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

15. Investment Properties (continued)

KRRE fEERER
FREFBERRYR A FESR ErORSBALRRENRE
Investment properties  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques EERLBR2Y Relationship of unobservable
held by the Group hierarchy  and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs for fair value
fri Bz EEh% E= REE(BHERE) ERRAEE (ZRITLENZELONEXRRBRERS BRAREXHENESHALEE
Residential properties Level 3 Investment method (termand ~ WEREVA B AR TE A0 ) B1.25%Z250(Z 5 -\ Tk
in PRC reversionary approach) £ 1500%25%) °
Term vyield, taking into account of yield generated from The increase in the term yield would
TESHA: comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty result in a decrease in fair value.

The key inputs are:

(1) A%

Term yield;

) #EHEEE R
Reversionary yield; and

(3) EREuMEELES
Market unit rent of
individual unit

of term income secured and to be received, of 1.25% to 2.5%
(2018: 1.5% to 2.5%).

EEREX(ZRIENTHEFERSMARTHENENE
frifE) B1.75%230%(ZF—\F : 2%%3%) ©
Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market
rental income and unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 1.75% to 3% (2018: 2% to 3%).

MSEME RERTSENERLE - WZRIME R
ERIRZ(Gim : EEEs - RN RRE) - FHT5EN
BENTFOFTARERARK 10T EFTAREAARY
A0T(ZF-N\F : BYAREAARK40TEETHXE
BAR#2007) «

Market unit rent compares with direct market comparables
and taking into account of location and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size of property and facilities. The
range of average market unit rent is from around RMB130
sq.m./month to RMB210 sq.m./month (2018: RMB140
sq.m./month to RMB200 sq.m./month).

EEREENENESHRALBE
T e

The increase in the reversionary
yield would result in a decrease in
fair value.

TAENRSHENE SN BE
2me

The increase in the market unit rent
would result in an increase in fair
value.
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DREEERLR —T-NFFR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

15. Investment Properties (continued)

AREE fEERER
FREFBERRYR A FESR ELRRSHALARENRE
Investment properties  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques EEREBRSY Relationship of unobservable
held by the Group hierarchy  and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs for fair value
iR Bz BE AR E= REE(BHERE) BEhHEX(ZRITLENEELOREERRMRER BARSENENCEHRLEE
Commercial properties Level 3 Investment method (termand AR BRA MR EHFE) B350 (ZF-NF: Tk
inPRC reversionary approach) 3.500) ©
Term vyield, taking into account of yield generated from The increase in the term yield would
TEZE: comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty result in a decrease in fair value.

The key inputs are:

(1) Bk
Term yield;

() ERkaE®: R
Reversionary yield; and

(3) EREuMEELES
Market unit rent of
individual unit

of term income secured and to be received, of 3.5% (2018:
3.50).

EEREX(ZRIENTHEFERSMARTHENENE
i) 4% (Z5—/\F : 49%) -

Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market
rental income and unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 4% (2018: 4%).

mSENES BERMSEUERLE  TERIERER
ERIRZ(Gim : EEEs - RN RRE) - FHT5EN
BeNGTARGAARE1OT(ZE-/\F: BTARE
AARE1377) »

Market unit rent compares with direct market comparables
and taking into account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of property and facilties.
The range of average market unit rent is around RMB140
sqm./month (2018: RMB137 sq.m./month).

EEREENENESHRALBE
T e

The increase in the reversionary
yield would result in a decrease in
fair value.

HENREHENG IR L BE
2me

The increase in the market unit rent
would result in an increase in fair
value.
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FEMBERRMEGE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE _—FE—NEF-H=F+—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2019

16. THb{F ARk 16. Land Use Rights

—F-N\F
2018
T
HK8'000
REA At the beginning of the year 10,151
EREREYE Transfer to investment properties (10,037)
B Amortisation (114)
INGEEN At the end of the year -
17. REpERAl 2w 17. Interests in Associates
—Z-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
FEIT T
HK$000 HK8'000
REKRA - FELET Cost of investments, unlisted 223,816 223816
FEMRYE 1 2 8 T & Share of post-acquisition profits and
EHfbh 2w - other comprehensive income,
Mg B8 net of dividends received 2,466,864 2,457,897
2,690,680 2,681,713

AR _ZE—hhER_ZE—N\F+_A=+—H Details of the principal associates as at 31st December, 2019 and 2018
ZEEBENRNFHEENMTE32(D) © are set out in note 32(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

e MBERMEGE)
BE=F-NFF+=A=1—ALEE

17. RE$ERR]Z () 17. Interests in Associates (continued)

EXBHEBLARCHMESTHEE Summarised financial information of material associate
Zeta Estates Limited Zeta Estates Limited
“B-hE —T-N\F
2019 2018
FET FET
HK$°000 HKg'000

MENEE Current assets 1,820,853 2,137,521
JEREBEE Non-current assets 6,992,901 6,959,884
DEIN=NE Current liabilities (477,567) (686,997)
JEREBBE Non-current liabilities (1,331,662) (1,373,666)
THEEMNEEEE The above amounts of assets and

BHEUATAR : liabilities include the following:
LB Investment properties 6,990,820 6,959,100
ReLBFEEEB Cash and cash equivalents 62,754 181
RPeRMBETEERIR Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and

EL A FERTRIE R B ) other payables and provisions) (296,598) (627,320)
FRBEBETEERIHR Non-current liabilities (excluding trade and

At A RRIE SR ) other payables and provisions) (1,331,662) (1,373,666)
WA Revenue 300,793 408,329
KREMEARBEE Change in fair value of investment properties 33,320 85,200
REFL2HE(ER) WK Total comprehensive (expenses) income

ek for the year (32,218) 100,083
RN [ 2K B Zeta Estates Limited Dividends from Zeta Estates Limited

ERS 2 during the year - 98,990
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REMBGHRERME(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B FE —FE— N+ =F—HIFEE for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019
17. RE$ERR]Z () 17. Interests in Associates (continued)
EXBEATIZHMESHEEGE) Summarised financial information of material associate
(continued)
Zeta Estates Limited(#&) Zeta Estates Limited (continued)

LT AR E RS A B RETR RN Zeta Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
Estates Limited#& s FBR EIE S BRINT ¢ carrying amount of the interest in Zeta Estates Limited recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

—Z-hEF —E-NF
2019 2018
FET FET
HK$000 HK3'000
Zeta Estates Limited 7 J# & &= Net assets of Zeta Estates Limited 7,004,525 7,036,742
A B A Zeta Estates Limited Carrying amount of the Group's interest in Zeta
FREENER EREEER Estates Limited (Proportion of the Group's
L 5133.339%) ownership interest of 33.330%) 2,334,842 2,345,581
{ERIFEE ERA N LGRS EE Aggregate information of associates that are not individually material:
—E-hEF —ZE-NF
2019 2018
FET T
HKS$000 HK8000
REBIERFEE The Group's share of total comprehensive
2HEWELRTE income for the year 19,707 22,941
REBPNZERE R RN Aggregate carrying amount of
R EAE the Group's interests in these associates 355,838 336,132

B ARTEYIERHEEAMNES ZIEE  The major non-current assets of the associates’ investment properties in
Y) % & 5t /57,803,820,0005 7T ( —F — )\ 4 - Hong Kong amounting to HK$7,803,820,000 (2018: HK$7,745,100,000)
7,745,100,000% 7T ) + H #2,736,773,0003% 5t of which HK$2,736,773,000 (2018: HK$2,712,700,000) was attributable
(=ZF—\£& :2,712,700,0008 ) 8zAAEE - to the Group. The following table shows the valuation techniques and
TEEHEBREAABEIIEHALXHALME  inputs used in the determination of fair values for investment properties
R NTIIREME, AR BERALEM@EESE  of associates as well as fair value hierarchy in which the fair value
ED 2 KE(—E=4) » WIREBAAEER,  measurement are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to
BEELHAMEL AR BESH - which significant inputs used in the fair value measurements is observable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE—FE-NF1-A=1T—HILFE

for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

17. REtE R a2 =) 17. Interests in Associates (continued)
KRRE fEERER
FRARGERENR A FESH ELORSBALRRENRE
Investment properties  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques ESmEBR2Y Relationship of unobservable
held by the associates  hierarchy  and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs for fair value
fIREEZBRYR £ REE(BHERE) BRYER(ZRITHBNEFELHUEERRBRERS BARSENENESHALEE
Commercial properties Level 3 Investment method (termand ~ WCEREVIE BRI A 0BT 14 60818 ) B2.2500%2.50 (ZF—/\ T«
in Hong Kong feversionary approach) £ 2500%3%) °
Term yield, taking into account of yield generated from The increase in the term yield would
TE2YA: comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty result in a decrease in fair value.

The key inputs are:

(1) MEkEE
Term yield;

() EEkEE R
Reversionary yield; and

(3) EREuMmEELES
Market unit rent of
individual unit

of term income secured and to be received, of 2.25% to 2.5%
(2018: 2.5% to 3%).

ERUAE (ZRIENFSFEASNARTLENENE
(&) 52.75%% 3% (Z5—/\F : 30%3.5%) °
Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market
rental income and unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 2.75% to 3% (2018: 3% to 3.5%).

TRELE S RERTRRNERLE - RIS R
[ERIEZ (i : GEER  PRANRER) - FOTHEL
BeNTFHETARGAATESTHREASEL(ZR
~N\E:EYTREANELEETHREAC4ET) «
Market unit rent compares with direct market comparables
and taking into account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of property and facilties.
The range of average market unit rent is from around HK$29
sqft/month to HK$55 sq.ft/month (2018: HK$31 sq.ft/
month to HK$64 sq.ft/month).

EEREEMENEEHAL BE
T

The increase in the reversionary
yield would result in a decrease in
fair value.

TERLELHENEEADLBE
-

The increase in the market unit rent
would result in an increase in fair
value.
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e M ERMEGE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

17. RE$ERR]Z () 17. Interests in Associates (continued)

LREE EERER
FRARGERENR A FESH EEHRSBRLRRENRE
Investment properties  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques ESREBR2Y Relationship of unobservable
held by the associates  hierarchy  and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs for fair value
I EEz IE E=R REE(BHERE) BRYER(ZRITHBNEELNUEERRBRERS BARSENENESHRALEE
Industrial properties Level 3 Investment method (termand ~ WERM RSB A BYREE fER03E R ) B300Z3.500( ZF—\E © T o

in Hong Kong

reversionary approach)

IRBEA:
The key inputs are:

(1) BEMEE:
Term yield;

() EEkEE R
Reversionary yield; and

(3) EREummEELES
Market unit rent of
individual unit

30623.5%) ©

Term yield, taking into account of yield generated from
comparable properties and adjustment to reflect the certainty
of term income secured and to be received, of 3% to 3.5%
(2018: 3% to 3.50%).

ERURE(ZRIENFSFEASMARTLENENE
friE) A3 52 4%( ZF—/\F : 3.50%4%) °

Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit market
rental income and unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 3.5% to 4% (2018: 3.5% to 4%).

HREE S RERTRRNERLE - RIS R
ERIEZ (i FEER  WEANRER) - FOTHEL
BENFHETHIREABOELESTARBAEL(ZF
—N\E: BYHREASETEETIRER154ET) -
Market unit rent compares with direct market comparables
and taking into account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of property and facilties.
The range of average market unit rent is from around HK$8.6
sq.ft/month to HK$36 sq.ft,/month (2018: HK$8.5 sqft/
month to HK$15.4 s ft/month).

The increase in the term yield would
result in a decrease in fair value.

BERAENENEEHALEE
T e

The increase in the reversionary
yield would result in a decrease in
fair value.

TERELNENESHLLBE
-

The increase in the market unit rent
would result in an increase in fair
value.
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FEMBERRMEGE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B —F— HEEF = H=+— G EEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2019

18. FiBHME2EWEIE A A EER 18. Equity Instrument at Fair Value through Other

BZRATA Comprehensive Income
k-2 3 — %
2019 2018
FHET TETT
HK$°000 HK3'000
FREMEEmKSEA L EERE > Equity instument at FVTOCI (Note a)
AT A (Hieta) 38,705 37,664

et - Notes:

@ ZEeREASETENESYERENIELTAF (a)  The amount represents the Group’s 5% (2018: 5%) equity interest in an unlisted

B95%( =Z— )\4F : 500) f1E - company, which is principally engaged in property investment.

(b) A LMIEEHURAREBEIIER - EREIRH (b)  The above investment is stated at fair value as set out in note 29(c).

7£29(0) °
10. FEYERTE « FABRFN ~ e M E  19. Debtors, Prepayments, Deposits and Other
ﬁﬂJ'EHﬁZ,TA Receivables
—E—-hEF —N\fF
2019 2018
FET FET
HKS$'000 HK$000
R 5 EWGRIE Trade receivables 2,644 1,439
H b pE kI8 Other receivables 9,120 8,363
FERERRES Prepayments and deposits 1,982 2,037
13,746 11,839
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FREMBERME(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B —F— HEEF = H=+— G EEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2019
19, JEWEIE ~ TENERRR - e Kk 19. Debtors, Prepayments, Deposits and Other
fth FE UL SR IE (1) Receivables (continued)

RGEWFENRRZAS M WESEEREW  Trade receivables represent rental and estate management fees receivable
T RRARERRZ N FUBMER A - 2 U which are receivable on the presentation of debit notes. Rental income is
ABEZHER— Az ARIEATRE - AEBEEEIR  billed in advance at month-end. The Group generally allows a credit period
HIOAEEHTFHES - AEEZZEXFEWE  of 30 days to its tenant. The ageing of these trade receivables of the Group,

R BAE RAR IR A MR B BRI T - net of provisions and in accordance with the revenue recognition dates, is as
follows:

= A
2019 2018
FEIT FET
HKS$'000 HK'000
30BA Within 30 days 2,632 1,332
31HZ60H 31-60 days 12 101
90H E Over 90 days - 6
2,644 1,439

RPEWFRIE « AR - e MHEMBEWFIE  The carrying amounts of trade receivables, prepayments, deposits and other

Z SHREEN T EERELIIE : receivables are denominated in the following currencies:
k- 2 3 —E-N\F
2019 2018
FHET T
HK$000 HK3'000
BT HK$ 9,582 8,646
ARBTARED Renminbi ("RMB") 456 88
E(E ) United States dollar ("USD") 3,708 3,105
13,746 11,839




e MBERMEGE)
BE=F-NFF+=A=1—ALEE

20. EWE K

RBRERR  RNEEAFEIEBLE=7EIK
BR(ZZE—)N\F : 3f#) - FRER5.75%ZFE15%
(ZZE—)\F : 7%=E15%) - @R _T—hF+=
A=+—B03EEKER - R 1ENNRMIEER
ﬁ&%11IL>{TEE$Eﬁ/—\ﬁT’E?fE?EﬁfD%%Jﬁ$]1I4*ETEW¥ '

P3EEFSEER - IF_7_7¢+ Az

DREEERLR —T-NFFR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

20. Loan Receivables

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has loan receivables from
three (2018: three) independent third parties which bear interest rate
ranging from 5.75% to 15% (2018: 7% to 15%) per annum. In respect
of three loan receivables as at 31st December, 2019, one is secured by
shares and the other one is secured under a debenture and the remaining
one is unsecured. All three are guaranteed and have maturity dates ranging

_7_E¢+ A(ZZE— N4 : —hF+—  from November 2020 to November 2024 (2018: November 2019 to
BE-_Z-—%+A)5H 5 $ﬁlzu"|? : October 2021) and are analysed as follows:
—2-hEF —N\F
2019 2018
FEIT TFET
HKS$'000 HK$000
ERBEE Non-current assets 175,152 125,032
MENEE Current assets 44,438 70,952
219,590 195,984
HE_ZT-hhFR-_ZT—N\F+=-_A=+—HH The loss allowance provision for loan receivables as at 31st December,
FEUE k2 fRE Bh B R I 5129 (b) 58 © 2019 and 2018 is disclosed in note 29(b).

EWER z 2 EREBENL T EE AEMSE : The carrying amounts of the loan receivables are denominated in the
following currencies:

k- 2 3 —TN\F
2019 2018
FEIT T
HK$000 HK3'000
BT HK$ 44,438 70,952
AR¥ RMB - 27,537
ETT usD 175,152 97,495
219,590 195,984
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e M ERMEGE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE _—FE—NEF-H=F+—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2019
21. e kRaFE 21. Cash and Cash Equivalents
—EZ-hE —TN\F
2019 2018
F#T FET
HKS$’000 HK8'000
REMHRLEHE - Cash and cash equivalents:
RITERERES Cash at bank and in hand 64,949 98,001
REHEBRITIE R Short-term bank deposits with
(RPA=MERAMEIE) original maturity within three months 152,082 100,000
Rensrziek Cash and cash equivalents for consolidated
REEESIN statement of cash flows analysis 217,031 198,001

REZZE-NFT-A=+—A B KRESEEEF  As at 31st December 2019, the cash and cash equivalents carry prevailing
BIRITTIBFIE R 1.53%%2.43% (=2 — \F :  market rates ranging from 1.53% to 2.43% (2018: 1.98% to 2.10%) per

1.98%%2.10%) ° annum.

RERREFEATIEE RELTIE The cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

k- 2 3 —TN\F

2019 2018

F#ET T8

HK$°000 HK8'000

BT HK$ 177,399 193,484

AR RMB 32,173 4511

ET usb 7,459 6

217,031 198,001
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

e M ERMEGE)

BE—FE-NF1-A=1T—HILFE

22. R 22. Share Capital
B FEr
Number of
shares HK$000
BETRER Issued and fully paid:
RZE—)\F+ZA=+—HK At 31st December,
—E-NF+ZA=+—H 2018 and 31st December, 2019 1,241,054,945 681,899

23, REFIEEE 23. Deferred Tax Liabilities

RAFERBEFEERNETHARBERAE

The followings are the deferred tax liabilities recognised and movements

AT - thereon during the current and prior years:
THgER
REAMRIE
Land
appreciation
LREE tax and Hit st
Fair value other tax Other Total
& F#r FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000
RZZE—-N\F—H—H At 1st January, 2018 155,223 5,907 277 161,407
RERN BB MNR Charge (credit) to profit or loss
(#m) for the year 2,525 (83) 174 2,616
R B EE Charge to property
Mkr revaluation reserve - 6,882 - 6,882
TR ¥ B R Credit to exchange reserve - (24) - (24)
RZZ—/)\F At 31st December, 2018
+=ZRA=+—H 157,748 12,682 451 170,881
RERNE B (BE) (Credit) charge to profit or loss
kR for the year (1,906) 1,260 285 (361)
AT 5% B R ) Credit to exchange reserve - (427) - (427)
RZZE—NEF At 31st December, 2019
+=—A=+—H 155,842 13,515 736 170,093

RIBERR  AEBBEEATEEREFN 2
K B TE 518 3,886,000/ T (— & — /L F -
13,250,000/ 7T) » AR EDETERANORF] - #E
MR T BIEEBRARLERIBEE -

ZEARPATIERIER] AERIRE o

These unused tax losses have no expiry date.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately HK$3,886,000 (2018: HK$13,250,000) available to offset
against future assessable profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of such losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
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e MM RMEE(H]) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE _—FE—NEF-H=F+—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2019
24, ENFIBNEAER 24. Creditors and Accruals
—E—-hEF —E-)\F
2019 2018
FEIT TFrET
HKS$’000 HK$000
R 5 ERTIE Trade creditors 340 283
HAb e FRIA Other creditors 15,737 10,255
P& Tenants deposits 13,579 13,492
[EEtEEER Accrued operating expenses 2,841 3,304
32,497 27,334
AREBZGEMNFIBERZEZE[HZEBNOT The ageing of the trade creditors of the Group in accordance with invoice
date is as follows:
—Z-hF —E-N\F
2019 2018
FET TFET
HKS$'000 HK$000
30HA Within 30 days 340 283

T EEMEIE  EMEMZERESIRS 4%  The carrying amounts of trade creditors, other creditors and tenants

BEEEUTS &8 AEMFIE deposits are denominated in the following currencies:
—E-hEF —E-NF
2019 2018
FEIT FET
HK$°000 HK8'000
BT HK$ 29,191 23,710
AREE RMB 465 320
29,656 24,030




e M ERMEGE)

BE—FE-NF1-A=1T—HILFE

25. REHEANE

NEEYEHRLWA AE49,532,0008T(ZZFE—N\
F 1 49,633,000/ L) c WEME L HEPREEMH
—ENF c RIEHR  AEEBERTREZ

EXMEFROEREHESOT -

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

25. Operating Leases Commitments

Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments as lessor

DREEERLR —T-NFFR

Property rental income earned during the year was HK$49,532,000 (2018:
HK$49,633,000). The properties held had committed leases mainly
running for the next one to six years. At the end of the reporting period, the

under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

k- - - 3 ZT-N\F

2019 2018

F#ET FHET

HKS$'000 HK$000

R—F 2K Within one year 35,647 31,191
HE—FEE_F From first to second year 33,678 20,299
HE_FE2E=F From second to third year 20,256 16,830
HE=FEZFEMNF From third to fourth year 13,673 12,015
HENFEEERSF From fourth to fifth year 9,824 10,745
EhFE After fifth year 264 6,666
113,342 97,746
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REMBRRMEGR)
HE=E—NEF=A=F—AULFE
26. EIREFIFTE]

AR E 2 BRIBBERING BB L2 ERH
FEFEI(TBRRAGE ) RREBRES RN
—EETFEF ARz 2B EI([aEes
g) ZFHEzEERAKEZEENRE
B BAXRATEZERESHAEE - £8ESD
BRI ZAT - RABEERARGEIKEZRER
BBEE2ERZRINGTEREERESHE
BN _ZETZF+-_A-BRUNERHABZE
BEF2EBEDE -

HReEestalke  EERAEEZEHIRA
BREFABMHFS 25% @ ®H/1E IR A30,000
BIL(ZF—/\F : 30,00087T) °

EERAEE G AERARERKTEIRME
®  BEZEFRERELRTE Z20%ES%  MA
EEANES%ZE10% 2 MR - MEEEEZREH
SRR EHFER AR LB 2R IRET 8 - R
M AHRAER 2 EAEREE - RE
BT \F+_A=T—HLFERARR-Z
—NF+ZA=+—HLFER  LEEAREM
FEREREE - RIESR - TEEREER
EE B 3 R IR T B T AREE 2 Ak R AT HRR S 2R AT

KB

REBE-_Z-HE+-_A=+—HIFERN &
S BB I 2 BIREFE 84 50A 300,000 7T
(ZZ— )\ : 340,000/87T) °

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

26. Retirement Benefit Plans

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme which is
registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance (“ORSO
Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme")
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in
December 2000. The assets of the schemes are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. Employees who
were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the
MPF Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme
or switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees joining
the Group on or after 1st December, 2000 are required to join the MPF
Scheme.

For members of the MPF Scheme, both employees’ and the Group's
contributions are calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly relevant
income, with the mandatory cap of HK$30,000 (2018: HK$30,000).

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from the employees
at rates ranging from 0% to 5% and from the Group at rates ranging from
5% to 10% of the employee’s basic salary, depending on the length of
service with the Group. Where there are employees who leave the ORSO
Scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions payable
by the Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions. During
the years ended 31st December, 2018 and 31st December, 2019,
there were no forfeited contributions used to set off contributions. At
the end of the reporting period, no forfeited contributions, which arose
upon employees leaving the ORSO Scheme, are available to reduce the
contributions payable in future years.

During the year ended 31st December, 2019, the Group made
contributions to the retirement benefits schemes of HK$300,000 (2018:
HK$340,000).




e MBERMEGE)
BE=F-NFF+=A=1—ALEE
27. BT P MR

REBEZZ-AF+A=+HI  ~EEEF
BBEALZR B REERIT

DREEERLR —T-NFFR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

27. Related Parties Transactions and Balances

During the year ended 31st December, 2019, the Group had transactions

and balances with related parties as follows:

(a) FRBRAES: (a) Related party transactions:
—E-nEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
TFETT FET
HK$000 HKE000
NG| Associates
— NEEREH Y E — Estate management
SIDBUT A fee earned by the Group - 1,833
WANGIAEEASEHZTBHE A major shareholder with significant influence,
Bt A HhEE (B AR AT ([Bd Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited ("APL")
MIEE |) - DR E SRR A ] and its ultimate holding company
—MAREEKRNESD - — Rent, estate management and
YT I 2o 0 8 B air-conditioning fees charged to the Group 1,266 1,466
— AN = [ R ) B4t B — Sundry expenses charged to the Group 590 546
e E 2 —HM B AR — A subsidiary of APL, Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited
FREERAR(FRED R ("SHK") and its subsidiaries
EfB AR
— REEBREEF S UA — Interest income earned by the Group 579 -
WANGIEEASE Y EBHRE A major shareholder with significant influence
KB E AR AT over the Company, Tian An China
Investments Company Limited
— A EUERA & IR RIS B — Management fee charged to the Group 1,900 1,700
—AIAREERE A RS E — Service fees charged to the Group 100 100
— (AN E R Y E B — Sundry expenses charged to the Group 1 2

(b) TEEEEARFH

TEERABNFHETHZESEREARR

LMiS8EmETE -

RAFECNRENTARBAEIREEEAR

HAEENFHMENHEEI0 -

(b) Key management personnel compensation

committee having regard to the performance of individuals and market

trends.

The remuneration of key management is determined by the remuneration

The remuneration paid and payable to the key management of the

Company, who are the Directors, for the year is set out in note 10.
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REMBGHRERME(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B FE —FE— N+ =F—HIFEE for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019
27. BB R 5 NS E) 27. Related Parties Transactions and Balances (continued)
() FREMFHHEE (c) Related party balances
—B-NF —FN\F
2019 2018
TFETT FET
HK$000 HK3'000
NG| Associates
— HfhpEl R E — Other receivable 90,229 200,229
— H fth 1 5K IB — Other payable 17,236 7,416
A HbE R H SRR AT APL and its ultimate holding company
— Hfth fE T 3R0B — Other payable 110 130
BaE s —RHMEAE— A subsidiary of APL,
TS E K E T A A SHK and its subsidiaries
— EWE SR (B ati) — Loan receivable (Note i) 78,000 -
— E b FEYAR X — Other receivable 578 -

REZE_Z-NF+ZA=+—HI - AEEH® During the year ended 31st December, 2019, the Group had transactions
BABEAT 2R G RAHRET ¢ and balances with related parties as follows:

JERTEE A HE - URERKZERARRRERE  The amounts due to APL and its ultimate holding company are unsecured,
IR EAENARERER - interest free and repayable on demand.

FEU (B Bt AR BRI A | AR - FE K The amounts due from (to) associates are unsecured, interest free and
REBEERERYR - EFRRZFIEEEER have no fixed repayment term. In the opinion of the Directors, the amount
BEAREBTERARER  FHtHERMEE s expected to be recovered within twelve months after the end of the
e reporting period and therefore is classified under current assets.

Miat - Note:

() REERREEFENR BEMR FHMER ()  The loan receivable bears interest of 5.75% per annum, is unsecured, guaranteed
5.75%IW TR T - NF+—AEE - and repayable in November 2024.




FEMBERERME(E)
BE-F— W+ = H=+—AILEE
28. BEARERRE IR

AEBEEREELR  UHRAEEZ BRETH
B WEBBLLEBREZEHRBRETR

REE A SR AAA A A AR (S
IR R -

@

EETHEMELAEE - (FRUEHMZ R &
EEREARAREBERNBREZER - AEEHK
REEEZERNYERFEBMNRERELEK
o FEEERE NG -

29. ERtT A

(a) &MIAZHA

DREEERLR —T-NFFR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

28. Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The
Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to owners
of the Company, comprising share capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure periodically. As a part of this
review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the Directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends and repurchase of shares.

29. Financial Instruments

(a) Categories of financial instruments

—Z—-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
FET FET
HK$000 HK3'000
SREE Financial assets
FREMEEEEEA R BERRE Equity instrument at FVTOC
AT A 38,705 37,664
RHENATE 2 eREE Financial assets at amortised cost 538,614 604,016
577,319 641,680
efaR Financial liabilities
RESHK G2 At amortised cost 46,892 31,446
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e MBERMEGE)
HE=F-NFE+=A=1—AUFE
29. ERTAE@®

(b) HMBERREREMRBE

AEBZIESHMTAREEBEME2ANRER
AREBEEEEZRATR RZERER  H
L EMERSR - EUER - U () B2 AR RR
FBHeRReEE IZENFE - EMERN
FENEPEE - ZFeRTAHBRSHER
B 2E2RITAGEZERBETSRAR(SME
R - FIRERREMERRR) - FEERBR LR
IR o TXEINAARFEZFRRZBUR
EEEEEMETZERR - AR MEAK
HREUEE 2 6 ©

mGmEE
0 SR

AEBBRZEWER - BMBEER B2k
ReEE XPBRNFAREFEEERERH
PASNEERHE - M EINERAREERBNIGER
AR RitEAEEmEEIMNERR - AEER
A ESNERRRIMNELIP B - EERESE
PIEERIMNERR - U EERE R BN LIMNER
HEH - PURERMR -

RI|EMR - ARBUINEHEIENEREE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

29. Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include equity instrument at
FVTOCI, trade receivables, other receivables, loan receivables, amounts
due from (to) associates, cash and cash equivalents, trade creditors, other
creditors and tenants deposits. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risk
() Currency risk

The Group has trade receivables, other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, trade creditors and accrued operating expenses that are
denominated in foreign currencies which are different from the functional
currency of the respective group entity and accordingly expose the Group to
currency risk. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy in respect of foreign currency exposure. However, the management
monitors the related foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and liabilities

REYaENEREENT denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
wE R
assets liabilities
—B-hE —T)N\F ZB-hF —TN\F
2019 2018 2019 2018
F#EIT FET FEIT FET
HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HK3'000
ETT usb 186,319 100,606 - -
AREE RMB 32,629 32,136 465 320




FEMBEERMEE)
BE=F-NFF+=H=F— AU
. BT HEe)

(b) FAFSEEREIE MR BRGR)

mEmER ()

() SMNEEER(E)

SNERRE

AEENTIEMNBARERBLYE  EXFHEE
AT - R RARBHERGE - pETH
EHes - A EERARAKERIMNER LI T
BA - MAKENRANAXILEAERES S
AR AWFEANRZHAFEREZR - N
BEEEEN AEEREBAEFEERSMES
HOSINE BEE 54 e et e eS8

FEBMETEAZARE ZER -

TR AR BB T N BRSNS UK E £
F R TRER5%(ZF—\F : 50) 2 528 - RE
DN BIEE B IAINESE 2 EEIFE RN FLIA
INETER500( =T — \4F : 50) 2 B EEITHE
E o ERRREBTHAABAINERRRT - A
FEEMR D o BT AR INE I 50 (=F

DREEERLR —T-NFFR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

29. Financial Instruments (continued)
(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)
() Currency risk (continued)
Foreign currency sensitivity

The Group's principal subsidiaries are operating in Hong Kong and their
transactions are mostly denominated and settled in HK$, USD and RMB.
As HK$ is pegged to USD, the Director thus considers the Group's foreign
currency exposure is not significant. To the extent that the Group's revenue
and expenditure are not naturally matched in the same currency and to
the extent that there are timing differences between receipt and payment,
the Group will be exposed to foreign currency exchange gains and losses
arising from transactions in currencies other than its functional currency.

The Group mainly exposes to the currency of RMB.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% (2018: 5%)
increase and decrease in HK$ against the relevant foreign currencies. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5% (2018:
5%) change in foreign currency rates. A positive number below indicates
a decrease in profit for the year where the HK$ strengthens against the

— )\ : 5%)  AIRFEEHFRSOT relevant currency. If there is 5% (2018: 5%) increase in HK$ against the
relevant foreign currencies, the decrease in the profit for the year is shown as
below:

—2-nE %
2019 2018
FEIT FET
HK$°000 HK$000

ARHE RMB

REEm MR Decrease in profit for the year 1,608 1,591

BERR BRESTAERKRAEIMNMERR - In the Directors’ opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the

B A 5 AR BB N S R A Y [ B inherent foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does not reflect
the exposure during the year.

—
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e MBERMEGE)
BE=F-NFF+=A=1—ALEE
29. EWMTAEM®

(b) FAFSEEREIE MR BRGR)

mEmEE (&)
(i) FIFE R
REERAEEZNERARERS RERER

AEEZRE MR EERBBEREAR R
PeXEMBAIRERZFEER - AKEE
AT A R AR EOEIPERER - EARKEE Y E
KMEZEHER - XEBEREHNOBEREZE -
MRITHRFECHE - EREERAEE 2 X
[ B & E B AE AN e A S LR

g

BURE DT

0

AEBETFZR[RITHOERMABA R - HAK
B s W EEAFE

(i)  BERE R
AEEZFETRAFBFRERBERRDER

REEE - At AEEARREELESRE
ERRERER -

THIGURE ST RIERE B HBPTAR 2 BRREAR
EE -

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

29. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group's fair value interest rate risk related primarily to loan receivables.
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk as its cash and cash
equivalents and loan receivables which are subject to floating interest
rate. The Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging policy.
However, the Group closely monitors interest rate movements and will
enter into new banking facilities when favourable pricing opportunities arise.
The management monitors the Group's interest exposure and will consider
hedging interest rate exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group's change in interest rate is mainly attributable to its bank
balances which is considered not significant to the Group.

(iii) ~ Other price risk

The Group's unlisted equity securities are measured at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity price risk
in relation to these financial assets.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to price risks at the reporting date.




FEMBEERMEE)
BE=F-NFF+=H=F— AU
. BT HEe)

(b) FAFSEEREIE MR BRGR)

mEmER ()

(i) EAEERE R ()

FBEM P ER B IZAA BEEIEZ RATA
AR A B LFN T EEBED AR, TRIEK5%(=
T—)\F :5%)  MABAMEERETE RN

—NEF+ZA=1+—ANKREEHEEKIY
/S’ 1,935,0007 T (=2 — )\ F : 1,883,000
BIT) - EcBAREREMEERERALBER
B2 BRATAZHMK -

1SR mAER BT

AEENEERRRENZZHRZELN - K%
B RRA M BRARBKBEERAEREE 2K
B

XoREERBREEET 2 HSMERER 2
MEERE - HERMASETERERE  BR
RETHORIRERS - EHLTE - EFRR/AE
BN EERRBERE -

nBEENEERREARN  AAXHHRE
RIT - WESHBERERTRRBRET 2ED
EERR -

DREEERLR —T-NFFR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

29. Financial Instruments (continued)
(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)
(i) Other price risk (continued)
Equity instrument at FVTOCI

If the business enterprise value of the underlying equity securities has been
5% (2018: 5%) higher/lower while all other variables were held constant,
investment revaluation reserve at 31st December, 2019 would have
increased/decreased by HK$1,935,000 (2018: HK$1,883,000) as a result
of changes in fair value of equity instrument at FVTOCI.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group's exposure to credit risk arises from potential losses result from
default on obligations by counterparties. The maximum exposure to the
Group is represented by the carrying amount of its financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Trade receivables consists of rental and estate management fees receivable
from tenants. Credit checks are carried out before commencement of
tenancies and on-going credit evaluation ensures any doubtful receivables
are provided for as required. In this regard, the Directors consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.
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e MBERMEGE)
BE=F-NFF+=A=1—ALEE
29. EWMTAEM®

(b) FAFSEEREIE MR BRGR)

15K 53 R E S ()

AEEZEERRTIESPERKER - E5RE
FAOEBUE= R —EBES - R_FT—NF
TZA=1t—8 BUREFER-_F_FF+—

ARE-ZT-_NF+—AREB(ZZE—N\F:
—NE+—BEZT-_—F+A)  TEBLHE
TRNE AR R 1R ) JE W B RR219,590,0007 7T
(ZZ— )\ : 195,984,000/ 7T ) /T2 BT Y
FHE o AN - BRFISBIEREIERER -

—-=

AEERBHMERNEERR - T2RARITD
BEMZRZEFNELF L -

BN - REESE R F BB FORER FE 2 A
HEEFAREMEREENRSHRZ1218A
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EEERRASENERERRD AARE -

RTREEERR  AEEQHE TIREOREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

29. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

The Group had a concentration of credit risk as the loan receivables are
advanced to a few independent third parties and a related party. As at
31st December, 2019, the loan receivables will be matured ranging from
November 2020 to November 2024 (2018: November 2019 to October
2021). Management had assessed the credit rating of the borrowers
for the secured and unsecured loan receivables of HK$219,590,000
(2018: HK$195,984,000). In addition, loans interest have been settled in
accordance with agreement terms.

The Group has no other significant concentrations of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

In addition, the Group reassesses the lifetime ECL for trade receivables and
the 12m ECL for other financial assets at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for significant increases
in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition. In this
regard, management of the Group considers that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has developed credit risk grading
to categorise exposures according to the degree of risk of default. The
Group uses publicly available financial information and its own historical
repayment records, or, where appropriate, engages an external valuer to
rate its major customers and debtors. The Group’s exposure and the credit
quality of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate
value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

e M ERMEGE)

BE=F-NFEF A=A —AILFE

SR T A 29. Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) MEREEEEERBK(E) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
1SR R AR Bt EFE () Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
REEAIEERBREBEATER - The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises the following
categories:
PIERME R Htt&mEE
Internal credit Jiliate X 5B AR Other financial
rating Description Trade receivables assets
RERR R HERERBIERERELH THIEEEEE - 128 AFasEE
RAE R EI R IR S BEERE JE51E
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
and does not have any past-due amounts not credit-impaired
FER B A BB IR IRRIE 2EFEHREEEE - 128 AFaHEE
BRENE RS BEERE 18
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
but usually settle in full not credit-impaired
(ed=3 R EIRERZE AN BER ZEEHEEEE - cHFEBEERE-
LEERBR=EIE M EEERE BEERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in Lifetime ECL — Llfetlme ECL -
credit risk since initial recognition through not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
information developed internally or
external resources
I=p BRBEEZEEZFERREAE 2 EEHEEEE - 2 HFEBEEEE -
EERE EERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
iskis BRBELZEB AL B ER TR 2R b Eislea:t ikt
REEW EERIBLUE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the Amount is written off Amount is written off

debtor is in severe financial difficulty and
the Group has no realistic prospect of

recovery
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e MM RMEE(H]) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE=—FE— HE+ ==+ —FIEE for the year ended 31st December, 2019
SRTEum 29. Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) MEREEEEERBK(E) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
1SR R AR Bt EFE () Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

TRHAMFPEBAEB S B EENRTEHZEE  The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group's financial

BRME TR EERR assets, which are subject to ECL assessment:
IREE
el RHUFEM
Gross {EEIEGHE
12(BA%2H carrying ECL
SHEBESERTIR  AEBERTR TWAGERER amount provided
—E-nE B&E External Internal 12m or FET FET
2019 Notes credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL HK$'000 HK$000
BMM A TRz 8 E Financial assets at amortised costs
FEWE 5K
Loan receivables
REBEREBIE=H Wb c TiE KR 1218 A 97,515 363
TRHEE RS
Long-term loan to an Notesb, ¢ N/A Low risk 12m ECL
independent third party
REAEREE =7 FMiztc, e NiE A {EWERN 1216 A 78,000 -
TBHEE &S
Long-term loan to Notes ¢, e N/A Low risk 12m ECL
a third party
REENREBLE=R M d TEA 1B 1218 A 45,000 562
TBHEEEE
Short-term loan to an Notes ¢, d N/A Low risk 12m ECL
independent third party
RS EWERR 19 N3 R {iWE T HFEBEEEE 2,644 -
Trade receivables N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL
Hoth FE M AR R 19 T KR 1218 A 9,120 -
TRHEEEE
Other receivables N/A Low risk 12m ECL

e —
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FEMBHERMEGE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B FE —FE— N+ =F—HIFEE for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019
29. @I A 29. Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) MEREEEEERBK(E) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
SERBERREFEG (&) Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
RE{E
HelE RHEH
Gross {EHEH
122 carrying ECL
SMBIEETE ABEETE RUGHEBR amount provided
—E-nE FEE External Internal 12m or FET FET
2019 Notes credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL HK$°000 HK3'000
RekREEE 21 N3 AR K2 B 121E A 217,031 -
TEEMEE TR
Cash and cash equivalents N/A Low risk 12m ECL
JEUES A BIBR 3R 27 T8 A {liwE 121@ A 90,229 -
TEEEE 1R
Amounts due from associates N/A Low risk 12m ECL
#8551 Total 539,539 925
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e MM RMEE(H]) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B —F— HEEF = H=+— G EEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2019
St T H g 29. Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) MEREEEEERBK(E) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
EE MR REFE(E) Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
FEE
HeEE  IRHTES
Gross  {=EEE
121 A sk 2 HA carrying ECL
HNEREERTAR  AEMEERTAR  EEMEEEE amount  provided
—N\F M5 External Internal 12-month or FEIT FAEIT
2018 Notes credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL HK$'000 HK§'000

BRIEME ATz £/EFE Financial assets at amortised costs

FEME X
Loan receivables
c REEFREBUE=F  Mita c TiE KRB 1218 A 27,587 50
TRHEEEE
+ Long-term loan to an Notes a, ¢ N/A Low risk 12m ECL
independent third party
- REEREBUFE=) b c TiE KR 1218 A 98,138 643
TBHEE &S
+ Longterm loan to an Notesb, ¢ N/A Low risk 12m ECL
independent third party
- RHEREBIE=H  MiEa c NiE A e 1218 A 71,000 48
TBHEEEE
»  Short-term loan to an Notes a, ¢ N/A Low risk 12m ECL
independent third party
R 5 REWERR 19 TiE i Ea 1,439 -
TEEMEE RS
Trade receivables N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL
H b fE AR R 19 TiEA {linEE 121E A 8,363 -
TBHEEEE
Other receivables N/A Low risk 12m ECL
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REMIERERMEGE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B FE —FE— N+ =F—HIFEE for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019
29. R T Ewwm) 29. Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) MEREEEEERBK(E) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
EE MR REFE(E) Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
RE{E
BEEE IR TEE
Gross  {ZEEE
121 A sk 2 HA carrying ECL
IMNBEERR  AEMEERR TEHEEEE amount  provided
—ZE—N\F B 5T External Internal 12-month or FET FET
2018 Notes credit rating credit rating lifetime ECL HK$'000 HK§'000
Re MReEE 21 TEA KRB 121E A 198,001 -
TEEMEE TR
Cash and cash equivalents N/A Low risk 12m ECL
R A BIRR R 27 T8 A e 121@ A 200,229 -
TEEEE 1R
Amounts due from associates N/A Low risk 12m ECL
#8551 Total 604,757 741
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FREMBERME(E) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE-—FE—NE+ - H=+—HIEEF for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

SR T A 29. Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) MEREEEEERBK(E) (b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

1SR R AR Bt EFE () Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
Miat - Notes:
(a) FEXRHBLZ EMATHERERA - (@  The loan is guaranteed by an independent listed company.

b) ZEZRD 1‘%??&/\2511% THHEERMAEE  (b)  The loan is secured by the certain shares of the borrower subsidiaries and
ARB—MBYLZ EHRR R AEA LR guaranteed by an independent listed company and an individual personal
RERA - guarantor.

© AEEZEBIINBEEAEUFEHEH2TER () The Group engaged independent external expert to perform expected credit loss
EEEE - BrRHREUR A ®RE - assessment on the balances. The information is extracted from valuation report.

(d) BZEFNBRARABEERANE2E%EZET  (d) The loan is secured under a debenture incorporating second fixed and floatin
g

FFBIERRBBZERAZREES - WEMNE charge over its undertaking , property and assets of the borrower and guaranteed
EFERRABARRIERERA - by an individual personal guarantor.
(e) HERUERFERHLETARERERA - (e)  The loan is unsecured and guaranteed by a listed company.
TRADHERERERAEERME 2 48R - The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances that has been

recognised for loan receivables.

128R
FRAEHEE
12m ECL
FET
HK3'000
RZE—-N\F—HA—H As at st January, 2018 -
RZE—-N\F—H—H Changes due to financial instruments
RS R TAZH) recognised as at 1st January, 2018:
—EWRRERE — Impairment losses recognised 741
RZE—\F+—A=+—H As at 31st December, 2018 741
i 2 hF—HA—H Changes due to financial instruments
RS R TAZS) recognised as at 1st January, 2019:
- E%’%@/WEEE%E — Impairment losses reversed (382)
MEANSBEFNSREE New financial assets originated or purchased 562
[E R Exchange adjustments 4
|
‘ R=Z-NF+-A=+—H As at 31st December, 2019 925

55—
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29. TR T A0

(b) FAFSEEREIE MR BRGR)
wEEREE

EEERBMEARE  AKEEZERESRESR
ReTE BEEEBR/ERANKFE AL
B EBERFESNREES IS TE -

AEBZzHAGBBRER S MEAMBNKE - H
FPike RIEMEE R RRR) BRIREREE -

(0 &MIAZARREE
ETARENESREENSRERREAAEE
e TRIMEREREENA A BEWFIE
EMER(EREREFAANGERTLRERS2
20 URRAREEFETHSHAUBAISG
WRE - BARBEAESBEARBERSIP
MER(E-—EE=H) -

DREEERLR —T-NFFR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

29. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group's operation and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows.

The Group's financial liabilities (including trade and other creditors and
tenants deposits and amounts due to associates) are repayable on
demand.

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. The following table gives information about
how the fair values of these financial assets are determined (in particular,
the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised
(Levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.
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e MBERMEGE)
BE=F-NFF+=A=1—ALEE
29. EWMTAEM®

(o &MIAZARMRENEHE)

RE-S-NF+ZAZ+—HZLRRERR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

29. Financial Instruments (continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(continued)

Fair value hierarchy as at 31st December, 2019

—2-hEF
2019
E—# -t B=H @t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FHET FHET FET FHET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FREMEEUEER AR Equity instrument at
EEEREZRATA FVTOCI
- - 38,705 38,705
RZZE—N\F+ZA=T—RAZAREBERA Fair value hierarchy as at 31st December, 2018
—ZE-N\F
2018
E—R FEM FEZMH st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FT FHET F#T FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKZ000 HK8'000
FRHMEmMWEIZR AR Equity instrument at
BEEREZRATA FVTOCI
- - 37,664 37,664

RARFEN  WREE—H - E_B/RE=H2
BEsEEE

There were no transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3 in the current year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

29. Financial Instruments (continued)

(d)

(continued)

157

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

The following table gives information about how the fair values of these

financial assets and liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation

techniques and inputs used).

Fair value as at
31st December,
ZZ-nE Z3NF
2019 018 SARERN REATRIESR EZRIBRN EBRSHALRRENRR
SHEE FET ##7r  Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Significant unobservable Relationship of unobservable
Financial assets HK$'000 HK§000  hierarchy  and key inputs inputs inputs for fair value
NERBERNRENA 38,705 37,664 #=h  BEERE MAUGEZRIAHANZELY  RElGEOENesan, R T
BAABEREL level 3 Asset-based approach WRERRBRERGUENESL  B-
RATA /\E’Jﬁé [E4738% ) B30 E3 5%
I ETIRAES IE28A: (22 \F : 30F350) ¢

Unlisted equity securites
classified as equity
instrument at FVTOCI

The key inputs are:

() EfEE:
(i) Tern yield;

(i) EBYEE:

(i) Reversionary yield;

(i) THELES : R

(il) Market unit rent; and

() RZABINTERSE 2 TE

(v) Discount for lack of control and
lack of marketabiliy

Term yield, taking into account of yield
generated from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the certainty
of term income secured and to be
received, of 3% to 3.5% (2018: 3% to
350%).

REUGE(ZRIEATRER RS
WART SR B M E) A3.5%
E400(ZF—/\F : 35%%4%) °
Reversionary yield, taking into account
annual unit market rental income and
unit market value of the comparable
properties, of 3.5% 0 4% (2018: 3.5%
10 48%).

The increase in the term yield would
resultin & decrease in fair vlue.

EERARNENSEHALEET
e

The increase in the reversionary yield
would resultin a decrease in fair value.
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e MBERMEGE)
BE=F-NFF+=A=1—ALEE
29. EWMTAEM®

(o &MIAZARMRENEHE)

T2AZ+-RZARRE

Fair value as at
31st December,
ZB-NE —3\%
2019 018 AREESR
aREE FET FE7  Fairvalue
Financial assets HK$'000 HKS000  hierarchy

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

29. Financial Instruments (continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(continued)

{ERTRTESH
Valuation techniques
and key inputs

EEELERSH
Significant unobservable
inputs

EiRRSBALRRENRE
Relationship of unobservable
inputs for fair value

maEfEe BER MR RN
R BZRINARABERIRZ(D
R MERRRE) - ¥
msElEe N FHETAREA
ET2ETAREAI0ET(Z3-N
£ §YFREANETEETIRE
R175%7)

Market unit rent compares with direct
market comparables and taking into
account of location and other individual
factors such as road frontage, size of
property and facilities. The range of
average market unit rent is from around
HK$30 sq.ft/month to HK$180 sqft/
month (2018: HK$30 sq t/manth to
HK$175 sqft /month).

e EERmERE TR (ZR
frBslERE) 2205% (8- /\E -
205%) ¢

Discount for lack of control and lack

of marketebiliy, taking into account
median control premium, of 20.5%
(2018: 22.5%).

nEEESHENeERN L BRE
i

0

The increase in the market unit rent
would result in an increase in fair value.

RzRANDERE AEEnes
JORBETE:

The increase in the discount for lack of
control and lack of marketabilty would
result in a decrease in fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

29. Financial Instruments (continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial
assets

Unlisted equity securities classified as

BFEIAZELTHRFES equity instrument at FVTOCI

FHET

HKg'000

RZZE—-N\F—HA—H As at st January, 2018 38,798
AREHAABEEE Unrealised fair value loss (1,134)

R-E—)\F+-_A=+—H As at 31st December, 2018 37,664

AERAABERS Unrealised fair value gain 1,041

E—hE+-—A=+—0H As at 31st December, 2019 38,705
REBRAABEKE(ZZ—N\F : Bi18)RE] The unrealised fair value gain (2018: loss) is represented by the change in

Hp2mMPRSER AR BEREZBRATANRS
BERREMEERERA -

1335 {E 44 E‘I‘ )\%m a

EERRIRBHEKAIIALRS
BEMERABENREEREEAAR

MBHERTNEE
LEEABHEE

fair value of equity instrument at FVTOC! in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of other financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised costs in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.
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FEMBEERMEE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE-—FE—NE+ - H=+—HIEEF for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019
30. AREES S ENEBF LR 30. Recondiliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing
Activities

TRHEMANEBRERETEHNEEES - 85  The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from

BeNFRLEH  BMETHELNEERERSE  financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities

MEXRKBESREBCEERLGARSRERT  arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or

DERMEEPREMENEE - future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement of
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

FETEE
EMERR DFRER
Dividend Amounts due o
payable to associates Total
FET FET FHT
HK3'000 HKZ'000 HK8'000
RZZE—N\F—H—H At 1st January, 2018 - 1,288 1,288
BEEMIKREMRE Dividend declared 310,263 - 310,263
MERERE Financing cash flows (310,263) 6,128 (304,135)
RZE—)/\F+-_HA=+—H At31st December, 2018 - 7416 7416
BEEMRERE Dividend declared 124,106 - 124,106
MERSTE Financing cash flows (124,106) 9,820 (114,286)
R-ZZT—NAFE+=-A=+—H At31st December, 2019 - 17,236 17,236
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31. REIFFIRUR M REE

(a) LFMBRAER

DREEERLR —T-NFFR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

31. Statement of Financial Position and Reserves of the

Company

(@) Company’'s Statement of Financial Position

—E-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
FEIT FET
HK$000 HK$000
aE ASSETS
EREBEE Non-current assets
M - BE L& Property, plant and equipment 286 191
KRB RRZIRE Investments in subsidiaries 1,914 1,914
FEUR T A BIBR 5K Amounts due from subsidiaries 613,658 696,669
(e p Club memberships 4,261 10,500
620,119 709,274
mENEE Current assets
FEURRIA - TR - 1BE K Debtors, prepayments, deposits and
H b pE U IE other receivables 1,047 1,323
AIER B FT1S R Income tax recoverable - 618
BekReEE Cash and cash equivalents 160,156 178,889
161,203 180,830
HEE Total assets 781,322 890,104
Ba EQUITY
& Share capital 681,899 681,899
5 Reserves 92,776 162,610
774,675 844,509
af| LIABILITIES
mEAR Current liabilities
FERTFIE R FERT B A Creditors and accruals 3,623 3712
FERS TS HL Income tax payable 283 -
FERTHT B A BIBR 5K Amounts due to subsidiaries 2,741 41,883
HaR Total liabilities 6,647 45,595
RERRAR Total equity and liabilities 781,322 890,104

RAFBRARER_Z_ZF=A+N\HLE

The statement of financial position of the Company was approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 18th March, 2020 and
are signed on its behalf by:

EERBREETE  YHTIEEKERES

ERE =
Patrick Lee Seng Wei Edwin Lo King Yau
FE BE

Director

Director
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REMBERERMMEE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE _—FE—NEF-H=F+—HIFEEF for the year ended 3 1st December, 2019
31. NAIBBAROR R K REE (8) 31. Statement of Financial Position and Reserves of the

Company (continued)

(b) LFEZBER (b) Movement in the Company’s reserves
BEERER
Investment RERF
revaluation Retained o5
reserve profits Total
FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000
RZZE—-N\F—H—H At 1st January, 2018 4,904 345,062 349,966
FRNELEWE Total comprehensive income
for the year - 122,907 122,907
XNEB_Z—tFRE Dividend relating to 2017
(H3213) (note 13) - (310,263) (310,263)
R-Z—\FE+=-_A=+—H At31st December, 2018 4,904 157,706 162,610
FRELXE(BR) W Total comprehensive (expenses)
income for the year (4,904) 59,176 54,272
SHEEZZE-NFRE Dividend relating to 2018
(KiaE13) (note 13) - (124,106) (124,106)
R-ZT—-NF+=-A=+—H8 At31st December, 2019 - 92,776 92,776

B,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

(a) Principal subsidiaries

163

32. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries and Associates

Details of the Company's subsidiaries at 31st December, 2019 and 2018,
which operate in Hong Kong except otherwise indicated, are as follows:

FisREE AL
it/ sk BRITRE BRRFENR Percentage of attributable equity
Place of Particular of BELRERRH s50R%
f4 incorporation/ issued share capital/ directly held by held by the TEEE
Name establishment  paid up registered capital the Company Group Principal activities
2019 2018 2019 2018
% Y% Y% Y%
SEUBERAR BE 1,000 L@ /10,0007 7T 100 100 100 100 Bi%mE
AsiaSec Finance Limited Hong Kong 1,000 Ordinary shares/HK$10,000 Financing
DENEERERATA B 300,000 & &%, = - 100 100 YEER
AsiaSec Property Management Limited ~ Hong Kong 300,000 7T Property management
300,000 Ordinary shares/
HK$300,000
BRREERAR Bk AREBR 25T - - 100 100 HERE
Citigrand Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary shares/HK$2 Property investment
FA(HE) BB AR Bk AREBR 25T 100 100 100 100 REZR
Dan Form (China) Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary shares/HK$2 Investment holding
FH(ER)BERAH Bk 1,000,008 % &,/ 100 100 100 100 REER
Dan Form (Hang Kong) Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000/ 7T Investment holding
1,000,000 Ordinary shares/
HK$1,000,000




164 Asiasec Properties Limited Annual Report 2019

REMBERERMMEE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B FE —FE— N+ =F—HIFEE for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

32. TEWNB AT NBZATFIFFIE  32. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries and Associates

(&) (continued)
(a) EEMEBAFE) (a) Principal subsidiaries (continued)
FisREE AL

it/ m BRITRS BRRFENR Percentage of attributable equity

Place of Particular of BELATERRR s5ER%E
4 incorporation/ issued share capital/ directly held by held by the FERH
Name establishment  paid up registered capital the Company Group Principal activities

2019 2018 2019 2018
% Y% Y% Y%

Dawna Range Company Limited 5 2MRE @R, 2087 - - 100 100 REZR

Hong Kong 2 Ordinary shares/HK$20 Investment holding
ERMEERARAR % 1,000/ &6 10,000/ T - - 100 00 #YEER
Diamond Property Management Hong Kong 1,000 Ordinary shares/HK§10,000 Property management

Company Limited
ELARAT 0 10,0008 % &fix,/ 10,0007 - - 100 100 HERE
Harcape Limited Hong Kong 10,000 Ordinary shares/ HK$10,000 Property investment
BEREBRDE 36 1,010,008 % &,/ - - 100 100 REER
Keen Safe Investment Limited Hong Kong 1,010,000/ 7T Investment holding
1,010,000 Ordinary shares/
HK$1,010,000
ERABRAT REARES \REBR1ER - - 100 100 HERE

Oriental Dragon Investment Limited British Virgin Islands 1 Ordinary share/USD? Property investment
AERRARAT Bt AREBR 2B - - 100 100 HERE
Top Power Development Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary shares/HK$2 Property investment
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

(continued)

(a) Principal subsidiaries (continued)

32. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries and Associates

FisREE AL
/i BRITRE MERFHR Percentage of attributable equity
Place of Particular of BELFERRE s5ERR
% incorporation/ issued share capital/ directly held by held by the FERE
Name establishment  paid up registered capital the Company Group Principal activities
2019 2018 2019 2018
Y% % % Y%
REEHERRAR AREREE  RERR XL - - 100 100 MERE
Winshine Properties Limited British Virgin Islands 1 Ordinary share/USD1 Property investment
VARERRAT G 1B 18T - - 100 100 MERE
Asia Empire Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 Ordinary share/HK§1 Property investment
RREERRAT G 1B 18T - - 100 100 MERE
Gold Asia Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 Ordinary share/HK$1 Property investment
EREABRAR G 1B 18T - - 100 100 MERE
Asiawell Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 Ordinary share/HK$1 Property investment
BEREABRAR G 1B 18T - - 100 100 MERE
Wide Asia Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 Ordinary share/HK$1 Property investment
ERMEREERERAA G AREBR 2087 - - 100 100 MERE
AsiaSec Project Management Limited Hong Kong 2 Ordinary shares/HK$20 Property investment
ENEIMERAR EEAREE  RETER1ET - - 100 100 HERE
Man Lee Offshore Limited British Virgin Islands 1 Ordinary share/USD1 Property investment
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REMBERERMMEE) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B FE —FE— N+ =F—HIFEE for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

32. TEWNB AT NBZATFIFFIE  32. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries and Associates
(&) (continued)

(b) EEBENLNT (b) Principal associates
FrisBRET L

Percentage of
attributable equity directly

230 A e ]
218 Place of FEEEFH FEEH
Name incorporation held by the Group Principal activities
2019 2018
% %
I REEEFIERERR AR R BE (Note) 294 EBRE
Beijing Jingyuan Property Mainland China (HiEE) Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
TEEIRERR AT B 50 50 #KREER
Ho Pok Investment Company Hong Kong Investment holding
Limited
BREBEXARAR B 50 50 WEKRE
Kin Tong Land Investment Hong Kong Property investment
Company Limited
Zeta Estates Limited e 33.33 3333 UEBREMERE
Hong Kong Property development and

property investment

Bt - AR BUE R ER AR AT ERAELTES o Note: Beijing Jingyuan Property Development Co., Ltd. was in liquidation during the year.
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B AREMBERBER - S FFYE IR
BRE BZZE_TF AR HEREHAS
EREEELE T RENAETE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
for the year ended 3 Ist December, 2019

33. Event after the Reporting Period

The outbreak of the 2019 Novel Coronavirus (“COVID-19") in China and
the subsequent quarantine measures imposed by the Chinese government
as well as the travel restrictions imposed by other countries in early 2020
have had a severe negative impact on the operations of the Group since
January 2020.

Retail tenants in Hong Kong are facing substantial business drop and
temporary closure as a result of COVID-19. In response of these, the Group
has granted rent concessions to tenants and the rental income from the
Group's commercial properties in 2020 is expected to decrease that may
have impacts over the fair value of the Group's investment properties.

Besides, the Group's residential and industrial properties held by the
associates for leasing and sales are also affected where the income from
rental and sales for the associates will also be reduced in 2020.

The Directors are still assessing the financial impact that the COVID-19
will have on the Group's financial statements as at the date that these
consolidated financial statements are authorised for issue.
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SEMEEIEHRE SUMMARY OF THE GROUP’S
FINANCIAL INFORMATION

—2-hFE —T-NF ZT—+F ZT—RF ZT—hF
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
FET FHEIT FET FEIT FET
HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

A Revenue 55,944 58,454 60,004 55,493 50,759
LR T Operating profit 52,704 62,259 83,552 107,931 76,507
JEAEERE A A Share of profit (loss) of

s A (5 8) associates 8,967 56,302 99,051 (30,995) 132,062
R0 A1 v ) Profit before taxation 61,671 118,561 182,603 76,936 208,569
FRS T Income tax expenses (3.657) (5,814) (13,438) (15,174) (12,851)
N5 A Profit for the year 58,014 112,747 169,165 61,762 195,718
EREBI Attributable to:

IR Equity holders 58,014 112,747 169,165 61,762 195,718

Al BN JEN JEN JEN

HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents HK cents

s bl Earnings per share 4.67 9.08 13.62 4.97 15.69
R E Total assets 4,658,964 4,714,880 4,894,582 5,405,183 5,398,618
mafE Total liabilities (222,375) (205,730) (191,185) (314,853) (178,960)
AEFE Net assets 4,436,589 4,509,150 4,703,397 5,090,330 5,219,658
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